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THE MA~TF.R: Are you re~dv to orocPed 7 

MR. ODAM: YeA, Your H~nnr. 

MR. MITC~LL: YeA, Jud~e. 

T~ MASTER: Do you h~vP a statPment to 

m~ke th~. !I mnrnlnJ~;, Mr, Mf t('hel 1? 

MR. MITClffiLL: YP~, Your Honor, we havp 

Arnulfn Guerra !lubooenaed ~"~ hP f!l oresent. 

THE MASTER: He iR thP Distrtct Attorney 

of 229th Dl!ltrfct. f!l he not? 

MR. MITCHELL: Ye!'l, !lir, he i.s the 

DlRtrlct Attor: v of thP ?19th Ju~lctal 

District anrl was at all time!'! cPlfbate, and 

Rti.ll t~ the District Attorney. 

I ~nuld like to note for the rPcord 

An~ to t~e Court that Mr. Guerra test{ffpd 

bt-fnrP the c-ommittee fn Austi.n. 

Tl-IE MASTER: That is the Hnuse St'lPct 

Commit:tPP that met in Msy? 

MR. MITCHEI.L: Yt'!l, !'lir, and the 

tranRcriot of the orocePdfn~ bPforP thP 

House SPlec-t Comm{tteP on Imoeachment, 

VolumP 7 and 8 contafns his testfmony. 

I h~VP rP~uested of Counsel for the 

E~amfnPr the onss{b{l{ty of a Rtioulatfon 
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thl'lt -- th-.t if Mr. Guttrr~ ill on thP wi tnPS!" I 

WP would like, ~ub1ect to thP ~~nroval 

of thtt Court, to ~t~nulattt ~h,. rPcord -- into 

thP rP~ord Mr. Guerra,~ tttstimony, that htt 

bttforP thtt TPx~s Stl'lte Houstt of Rtt~rtt~ttnta-

tivtts on June 4, 1975, and ~lso, Ynur Honor, 

this vo1umP -- and continuln~ Into Voltime 8, 

StatP Hou~P of RenrPsPntativps to and tnclu~-

Honor, ill his testimony is followed by an A. 

Guttrra who i~ his brother and thi~ would bP 

to and tnc1udin~ Vnlumtt 8, ?49, na~tt 249. 

THE MASTER: All ri ,:r.ht, ,,,ho i.s --

well, f~r~t nf all, Mr. ExaminPr, do you 

MR. FLUSCHE: Wtt stioulatP to thP truth 
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THE ~STER: Th~t iAn't th~ ~tinu1Ation. 

Th~ Attnu1Ation iR that if Mr. GuPrra werP 

callPd to tPsttfy fn thP oro~PPdfn~ and 

thoAP ~amP Answprs. 

MR. FLUSCHE: YPs, !'lir, "'P w~ll sttpu-

THE ~STER: A 11 r hht. 

MR. FLUSCHE: HowevPr, wP would ob.11'c-t 

to thP lntroduL.{on of thiR because of it'~ 

mAteriAlity or lack of mAteriAlity and la~k 

of rP1Pvan~y. 

The te~t~mony has to do with Arnutfo 

Guerra's racP f~ thP Distr4ct AttornPy, thP 

time hP wAs Annointed, thP mannPr in which 

hP camp fnto office, thP P~nensPR of the 

It hfls to 

THE MASTER: But thP noint is, he i.A 

offerin~ it. If I ~uRtain the objPction, 

you wf.ll offpr it on IIJ bllt. is thRtcorrec-t" 

MR. MITC~ELL: Y~s. Y~ur Honor. 

THE ~STER: And thP.rP. is no point in 

te111n~ me whiiJt the ~vid~ncP is about. 

mP rPIIJd tt and mak~ mv ~ulin~. 
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ynur oh 1 f'<' t ion. 

MR. FLUSCHE: A1l right, ~ir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Vf'ry ~ood, Jud~e. I 

THE MASTER: Nnw, ~~ho!'!e res.,on~dbilitv 

ts it to gpt it tnt~ thf' record? 

MR. MITCHELL: I will o~fer tt at this 

nnint, Ynur Honor, and r?nuest that the 

renorter s{moly transcribe, be~inntn~ at 

on Volume 7, nagf' 226, containtn~ through 

and includfn~ ~ .. ·umf' 8 ~"' nreviously i.ndt-

rated tn thfs record fn A Q and A form as 

it annf'ars in the transcriot, Judge, and I 

~t11 dP1fver ~t to thf' rennrtf'r for that 

ouroose the two volumf's t~at I have my 

the tr8n~i .,t. 

THE MASTER: ThAt ir s~tti~factory. 

MR. MITCHELL: And I understand thf' 

n~iection, Your Honor, and "ufte candidly 

with the Court, there are some nortfnns thAt 

~trf' lmmlltf'rfal and irrelevllnt. 

that, but we dPf'rn somf' nortions vital And 

relPvant and thf'y are vitally matE>rial. 
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MR. ODAM: I~ there any way I am 

~ay and that i~ that all of t~~t ty~ed up 

~ortton. aporoxfmately a hun~red and fifty 

~8~e~ which t~ there an~ which we al~o have 

~ co~v of hPre need not be retyned and ~ut 

~nto th~~ record for a hundte~ and fifty 

MR. FLUSCHE: It i~ about four hundred 

MR. ODAM: About four hundmd oa~e~. 

tt could be m~rke~ as .11n Exhtbit and have 

the ~ame our~o~e and effect, if thoRe ~a~es 

which are already ty~ed un could be inserted 

with pa~e numbers at this nsrttcular nlace. 

My only "uestion ~~. I hate to take 

the time and a little bit of exnen~e tn 

It t~ 1ust extra-

(Discusqion off the record.) 

THE MASTER: Well, now, let's see, 

you are offertn~ Mr. Guerra as a wttness, 

is that correct? 
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MR. MITC~F.LL: Ye~. Ynur Hnnor, and hP 

T1tE !'fASTER: And ynu "'l'P !'ltlll offpr'fnJ!' 

him tn pffprt out nf turn becauR~, as I undPr-

c:tAnd --

MR. \fiTCHELL: That'c: ri~l-tt. 

T~E MASTER: The Exam'lr~r h"'c: not yet 

MR. MITCHELL: That's rfJ!'ht, Jud~P 

THE MAS TEk.. Now, l•>'~ th rP!'l nPc t to your 

renuec:t, you 1uRt ~et with Mr. VPrnon, thPrP 

may bP a wsy t!-tat c:omP P~nPnSP can hP saved. 

MR. ODAM: Let me ARk 

MR. MITCHRLL: I hAve nn commPnt on 

I am c:ure thl!lt 

thAt c"'" be handlPd corrPct1y and I would 

t~ry wft~ you, an~ thP t'PnortPr and thP 

Cnurt, rertafnly iR finP. 

MR. ODAM: And you wnu1d have no nbjec-

t~nn 1f we werP tn work nut that these oi!I~PR 

ri e;ht here l••PrP tl'l come i.n rf l!'ht now, thoBP 

MR. MITCHELL: Nn, I would not. 
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MR. ODAM: As s nart of this record. 

MR. MITCHELL: I-.,ul~ not, ""fr. Od~tm, 

THE ""fAST~R: Mr. O~am, somewherP alon~ 

*' thP 11nP tou havP ~ot to call yoLr last wft-

nP~oc:. t ~UP!l!': Mr. CoulinJ!;, 11nd ~et throuJ!:h 

to•f th him, I ~uess Mr. M~tchell {s <:till 

MR, ODAM: HP nasoc:r~ him back to our 

rP~frect PYRminatlon And if Mr. MltchPll i<: 

T1iE "fASTER: HP nss!':ed him hAck but hP 

reserv,.~ 

MR. MITCHELL: Th~tt'oc: ri.~ht, Your Honor. 

THF. MASTER: -- thP rt~ht for conoc:{der-

rPnly to anythin~ you mfpht do this morn-

in~. hut vnu h~td some mRtters you wantPd to 

p~ into Its 11 rpsu1t of thP instruments that 

MR. MITCHELL: That's riJ!:ht, thAt fs 

corrpct. Your Honor, and I -- and I reorP-

oc:ent to thP Court wi1l not tAkP me over 
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rlorumentary and hou~erteanin~ on --

THE ~STER: But Mr. Odam has htm now 

and he may want to a~ hlm some auP~tions. 

MR.'''MITCHELL: F{ne. I hav~ no --

THE ~STER: Would onP of you all ~teo 

out and ~et ~r. Coulin~? 

MR. MITCHELL: I'l1 he glad to. 

MS. LEVATINO: I h ve to go out any-

way, I w111 RPt him, thank you. 

MR. ODAM: Do you hAve thP dPoosit s1io~ 

1'1R. MITCHELL: They have hf'Pn put bllt'k 

~n thf' f4 1 r. 

MR. ODAM: All ri~ht, thi~ i~ our bo~ 

MR. MITCHELL: That would bP, of cour~P -

' MR. ODAM: Yf's, herP t~ey are. 
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RUDOLFO COULING, 

2 recalled as a witness, having been previously sworn, 

3 testified as follows, to-wit: 

5 E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------
6 

7 BY MR. ODAM: 

8 

9 Q 

10 

1i 

12 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 

Mr. Couling, I wish, first of all, to remind 

you that when you testified before, you are still 

under oath to tell ~'le truth, the whole truth and 

nothing but the truth, do you understand that? 

Yes, sir. 

Mr. Couling, I show you what has been marked by 

the court reporter as E-173-1, and for your 

information, when we talked about these the other 

day, these are the bank photostatic copies of 

deposit slips. I am referring to E-173-1 through 

173-28 and I will ask you to very briefly, for 

the purpose of refreshing your recollection, 

review these and then I will have some questions 

to ask you about them. 

Okay, sir. 

Have you had a chance to look at the deposit 

slips? 
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A Yes, sir. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Can you state whether or not these are deposited 

in the Rio Grande City bank account and are 

deposits of the Benavides Implement Pnd Hardware? 

Yes, sir. 

Have you had the time to determine the total 

amount of deposits to that account? 

Yes, sir, I made notes to that effect. 

Do you have those with you? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MIT~: ""LL: For the record, may I 

ask counsel, are those the deposits in the 

Rio Grande City account? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: And only that account? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: I said that, Your Honor, 

to be sure that the record reflected that 

correctly. There is a difference in the 

figures between that account and the other. 

THE MASTER: Very well. 

(By Mr. Odam) Again, for clarification, we are 

referring to here, the total deposits in the 

Rio Grande City bank account? 

Yes. 
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What did you calculate to be the total amount of 

deposits? 

Thirty-nine thousand, seven hundred ninety-six 

dollars twenty-five cents. 

And in looking through the deposit slips here, 

E-173-1 through 173-28, did you notice whether or 

not it indicates on the deposit slip the deposits 

of checks from Duval County·. 

On some of them. 

And they are marked on the deposit slips which 

ones are those? 

Yes, sir. 

I show you what has been marked as E-173-15 and 

ask you to examine that a moment. Can you 

identify for the record what items appear on 173-1~? 

MR. MITCHELL: You said 173-315? 

MR. ODAM: No, 173-15. 

(By Mr. Odam) Go ahead. 

There are two deposits on May 3rd, 1974, at the 

First State Bank and Trust of Rio Grande City. 

One of them is Check 417 and another one is a 

transfer from equity from the account of 0. P. 

Carrillo, fifteen dollars. 

I believe it was your testimony yesterday that 

Mr. Mitchell asked you a qu~stion about on the 
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checks to Plains Machinery, do you recall there 

was a check that was bounced and came back? 

Yes. 

I believe you said at that time you deposited 

forty dollars in the account? 

Yes, sir. 

Would you agree that 173-15 is rvidence of that 

deposit of forty dollars? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is an improper 

question, whe •. he asked about is that 

evidence of. 

THE MASTER: I did not take it as 

legal evidence. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will withdraw the 

objection with that explanation. 

(By Mr. Odam) All right. The deposit you made 

for forty dollars would be the deposit slip here 

in the amount of forty dollars, would that be 

indicative of the forty dollars you deposited to 

make up that difference? 

Yes, sir. 

And on this same sheet, would the fifteen dollars 

in transfer from the account of 0. P. Carrillo, 

per 0. P. Carrillo's instructions of fifteen 
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dollars, would that be indicative of a deposit 

into the bank account, as evidenced by 162, and 

this statement for the month ending May 31st, 

1974? 

Yes, sir. 

So to summarize, those two statements, 173-15, 

would be the indication of thes~ two deposits of 

fifteen dollars and forty dollars to bring the 

balance up enough to cover that three thousand 

dollar check? 

Yes, sir. 

Mr. Couling, I will show you now Exhibits 172-1 

through 172-31, and I will state to you these 

are, according to earlier testimony and the 

stipulation, these are photostatic copies of 

checks from the Rio Grande City bank brought here 

or sent here by Jim Bates, and these were 

intended to be all of the cheeks written on the 

account of the Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we had an 

agreement that the yellow slips were not a 

part of that package and I would like to 

have them removed. They have remarks on 

them. 

THE MASTER: Those remarks are not 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE· GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS '78401 



2 

3 Q 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 A 

9 

10 

11 Q 

12 

13 

A 

15 Q 

16 A 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 Q 

A 

24 Q 

25 

2680 

admissible, clearly. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Your Honor. 

(By Mr. Odam) All right. The first exhibit, 

172-1, and I state to the record, it is not my 

intention to go through and identify these checks, 

all of them. 

Can you identify that item, 172-1? 

It is a check on November 1~. 1972, to Massey-

Ferguson for two thousand nine hundred seventy-

five dollars twenty-five cents. 

And this check you • lferred to, 172-1, is this 

one and the same check you signed to transfer 

money to Massey-Ferguson? 

Yes, sir. 

\olhat was the purpose of that check? 

0. P. said I should send a check for that amount 

to Massey-Ferguson and it came back and I had 

already testified it was a down payment or a 

regular payment, but it was a check issued on 

0. P. Carrillo's instructions. 

It was a payment or down payment to Massey-Ferguso~ 

on 0. P. Carrillo's instructions? 

Yes, sir. 

Have you .had an opportunity to total up the total 

amount of checks on the account? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Can you state what the total amount of checks 

were that were written on the account? 

Thirty-nine thousand seven hundred fifty-six 

dollars four cents. 

And have you had an opportunity to -- well, that 

series of checks you have before you, the copies 

that includes, I take it, t'l•:! checks you testified 

earlier to to B. D. Holt and Plains Machinery 

and Massey-Ferguson? 

Yes. 

What would be the total of those checks? 

Thirty-three thousand six hundred twenty-five 

dollars th:ir ty-five cents. 

And if you take the total amount of checks 

written on the account and you subtract the 

amount of checks written for Plains and B. D. 

Holt and Massey-Ferguson and so forth for the 

equipment, do you know what the difference is 

between the checks for the equipment, that is, 

Massey-Ferguson and B. D. Holt and Plains 

Machinery and the rest of the checks, what that 

difference is? 

Six thousand one hundred fifty d,llars sixty-

four cents. 
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MR. MITCHELL: How many cents? 

THE WITNESS: Sixty-four cents. 

(By Mr. Odam) So the total of -- I think you 

testified thirty-nine thousand seven hundred 

2682 

fifty-six dollars four cents was the total deposit, 

so of that there is only six thousand and some 

odd written for payments other t .an equipment? 

Yes, and including the note payment. 

How much is that? 

Two thousand six hundred fifty-eight dollars 

fifty-eight cents, L believe. Yes, it is two 

thousand six hundred and fifty-eight dollars 

fifty-eight cents, sir. 

-..,. _____ . _____________ ·--------------------
' '"·· '-..,_ 

25 -- ···----------------------------
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Q Th~t would be thP amount "ayablP on t~note? 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

Q Mr. Coul tnsr, thP 1 ""t nut'~tion that I i.ntPnrl to 

a~k you, dP"ls w~th thP nuf'stton tMt Mr. MitchPll 

had a~ked you, I bPlievP, on cro~~-examfnatton 

or parlier, and that was thP nup~tion -- or to 

ppt at the oofnt of why you would -- I believe 

hP u~ed the word~ or thP ohra~P ~ratuitously, 

or why you wrftP ou, all of the checks to 0. P. 

Carrillo, do you rPeall when that diseuR~ion came 

uo, why you would write all of those checks? 

A Whi.ch one~ ~trP you tltlkinp: about particularly? 

Q I'm talkinl" about all the ch~ck~ th"t youwrot-E' 

tn 0. P. C"rrtllo on that account and thP San 

llP~o account, I am talking about thP cheeks to 

Plain~ Machinery that you ~rotP on the Benavfde~ 

ImnlemPnt and Hardware account. 

Let me a~k ym, I beliPve you testified wht"n 

you were fir~t nut on as a wftnt'ss by the 

ExaminPr" some time ap:o, that you -- what y~ur 

Pmnloyment record wps and I bPliPVP you testified 

that you at one time worked i~ the oft fif'lds, 

~s th11t correct? 
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A ThRt'~ correct, ~tr. 

2 Q And wl,E'n you lE'ft the oi.l fipld, what _1ob dtd 

3 ynu ~o to thPn? 

5 And thPn ~n 1962 I was a~~roached by 0. P. Rnd 

6 ~Afd if I wanted to be a tax collE"ctor for thP 

7 

8 and I went t~ work in around OctobPr or NovE"mber 

9 of 1962, ~fr. 

10 0 Nn-,:.•, in Octnber of 196?, whE"n you went to work 

11 for thP schonl df~l- ct, that wa~ thP ta~ a~~e~~or-

12 <'nl1E"ctor? 

13 A TaY cnllector. 

14 0 And I belf_eve you testifiE"d tn it Pl'lrltf'r and I 

15 am nnt !lUre, but Rt th11t time, wh11t -,:.•a~ .JudgP 

16 

17 hnard or, in othPr words, what authority did hE' 

18 havE" to a~k you 1f you wanted thAt job? 

U A HP wa~ runnin~ for offfcP thPn, sir. 

20 Q He wA~ runninJr for the sch-ool board? 

a Q And whE"n he a8ked you if you wantE"d that job, 

23 what wa ~ ynur rE"oly to him? 
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I 

2 

3 Q Anrf wit~ -- 11nd t.•hllt "o!'4i.tf.on did he- hold on thP 

4 

5 A RP WIIA -- I don't know ho~• lonJ?; he Wit~ ·a regular 

6 board mPmbPr, but I don't bPliPVP it wss very 

7 long, HP wa~ oreRfdent of thP bo· rd for thP 

8 ~chool district, sfr. 

9 

10 A Yf'R, l'li.r. 

11 Q And you st that time .erE' thP --

12 A Ta~ collf'ctor. 

13 Q T~x collf'ctor for the school bo~trd? 

14 

~ 0 Now, aftf'r hP wits elPCtf'd to the- school board, 

Iii 

17 

18 

19 

21 

25 

did hP h11vf' any convPrsstfon wfth you at all 

wfth reR 0 ect to the wr{tf.nF. of thPse chPcks or 

any ~thf'r chPcks on thPse ltccounts? 

MR. MITCHELL: Excu~P. me, Your Honor, 

I don't think therE' would, of cnurse, be-

any rPlevancy of &ny conver~atfon that 

occurrpd In 1962 or 196~ 11nd WP would likP 

to a~i'!ert, cPrtafnly, that thPse ~uestfons 

go way hPyond thE' confines of the formal 

notf cP 11nd the f.nf..,rmlll notf cP ItS well 111!1 
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14nd imm~ttP.ri.~tl to thP !'ltructure of the 

THE ~STFR: The nu~qtlnn was not 

Now, wh~tt chP.cks ~re you t~tlktn~ about? 

MR. ODAM: I am sorry, 1et me rl&rtfy 

thllt. That ts a very ~ood ~ofnt. 

Q I sa~d these checks, I did not mea~ Mr. Coulin~. 

the checkR that were wrlttt>n dur-fn,:r thtose year!': 

un in 1971, n&st an~ let mP see if I ran clarify 

thll t. 

When I referred to these checks, I was 

but to thE' rherks, for t>xllmole, th11t Mr. Mitcht>ll 

resnect to your rredtbllity, the rherks th&t he 

s11i.d you for~ed, the checks where monev went to 

0 • P . C" rr i 1l n . 

,.,ere Mr. MitchPl1 w.-nt b~tck ft'r 11 number nf years. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would st-fl1 object, 

those were 68 -- the ta~1 end nf 68, 69, 

70 and the Court is awltrP ~f the onPs that 

are tn evidence, 65, here 11s Exhibit E-65, 

as 71 and the 151 series i.s 71 11nd we say 
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it 1~ ~~tr~mPly r~mote, Y~ur Hnnor, an~ 

imnu!ltPrial and irrPlPvant. 

THE MASTER: But, if he'~ ~of.n~ into 

~omP checks t~at you R~kPd this ~ttnes~ 

MR. MITCHELL: I havP n~ ob1ection 

to him asking about 196F. It h 1962 that 

bnthPrs me. 

0 WPll, 196? ts ~hen Jud~e Carrillo came on a~ 

A Ye~, sir. 

0 Now, we are talking about the checks fn 1968. 

A~afn, I am sorry about my nue~tion as to the 

snecificity of it, I didn't mean neces~arily 

LPt's move un to thP checks in 1968 that 

1\.fr. Mitchell i.s refe!rlng to and hP Asked you 

about. 

Oneto JudJ!to Carrf.llo came on as nreRident 

of the school board and you were servtn~ as ta~ 

collf>ctor,. my ftuestton to you now i~ did you 

have any converllatti ons with .JudJ!P. CarrO 1 o about 

t~at seriP~ of checks Mr. Mitche11 asked you 

about? 
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A YPl'l, qfr. 

2 

3 

4 

s rhecks, I can ~fvP htm some money and he would 

6 ~tve me n~rt of tt back to mr, ~ive me somethtn~ 

7 ~fVf' oart of tt back to ~P, l'lir. 

B Q Why df.rl you do that? 

9 MR. ODAM: Strike that oue~tion. 

10 Q Df.d you think that that was s le~al -- I know 

II that calls for a lt,,~l conclu!'lion on your n11rt, 

12 did 1u!'lt let me ask if you thou~ht that was thP 

13 nrooer thin~ to be doin~, lawful thin~ to be 

14 dofn~ on your oart, t~ be t11kfn~ oart tn such a 

15 !'IChemf', 

16 MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I w11nt to 

17 object to that, if the man ts on the stand 

18 and has admitted for~ery and admitted rionfn~ 

19 off the county. I think it sneaks for itself, 

·20 whether ft i!'l imoroner or not is a ouestion 

21 

THE MASTER: Thf' ob1ectfon :f.s overru1,.d. 

MR. MITCHELL: Note our pyceotion. 

24 Q Did you undPrl'ltan~ the nuestion I am aski.ng? 

· 25 A Yes. 
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0 Why --

MR. ODAM: Strike th~t. 

Q Did you think that was the le~al or ~ro~er thin~ 

to do? 

A I dfd, but I didn't ~uestlon {t, ~tr. 

0 Ynu ~ld think ~twas le~al~ 

A No, that {t was ille~al. 

0 Whv didn't you nuestion it~ 

A We wPre ~ood fr{pnds and I fl~ured ff I ~ues-

tloned it, I wa~ goin~ to be told it was none nf 

my buRiness. I was ~orkin~ fnr them and I am 

su""osed tn do what they wanted. 

0 When you say "they", who srP you talkin~ about, 

when you say "thPy"? 

A o. P. Carrillo, sir. 

Q So ~ursuant tn Jud~e Carrl11o's ~nstructlons, 

you be~an to write out thnse checks {n 1968 of 

the Benavides IndPoendent School District, ~~ 

that correct? 

A That's correct, ~lr. 

Q And I will not ~o back throuFh it as to the 

reasons why ym continued with the Benavides 

ImolPment and Hardware and the county checks, 

that is already tn evidence and T won't discuss 

thllt. 
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A~Afn, th~ ouroos~ of my askfn~ you that 

~UP~tfon fn resoon~P t~ Mr. Mitchell's ouesttons 

why you ~ou1rl ~r~tuftously wr.tt~ out thn~P checkq 

to Jud~e Carrttto, do you undPrstand that? 

A YP~. 

MR. ODAM: Pa~s thP witn~ss. 

MR. MITC~ELL: Your Hon~r, may I call 

Octavin Rtno1oqa out of ~rdPr so we can 

document cPrtain chPcks from thP BPnavtdes 

Imolement and HardwarP, from thp DuvAl 

County Conserv~_·on and Reclamation Dis-

trtct, and from the county and school dfs-

trict oreoaratory to nuPst4onfn~ this wit-

ness as to qome of those items. May I 

have }Pave of Court to do that, olease, sir? 

MR. ODAM: No nb.1ection. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Coul i.n~, I wf 11 ask 

you to sten down and waft for a while. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I bP nermttted to 

cl!lll Mr. Hfno1nsa, who f!': out i.n thf' hall, 

THE MASTER: YE>~, sf r. 
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OCTAVIO HINOJOSA, 

2 havtn, been urevtously sworn, rec~11Pd es a witness, 

3 ,.nd tPstffied unon hts oath 8S follow!!: 

5 

6 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

7 

8 Q Your name is Octavlo Hinojogs? 

9 A Yes, Rir. 

W Q You have prPvlously testified on two occasions, 

11 havE' you not, Mr. P"' · '1j osa ~ 

12 A Yf's, str. 

13 0 And the Court notes and reminds you you are still 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

18 

21 

24 

undPr o11th. 

I asked you on a ~revious -- I believe you 

were asked bv the Attorney General and myself 

to comnllf' for us a schedule showfn~ BPnavldes 

Imnlf'ment and Hardware Com~any c~Pcks, that is, 

checks to Benavides Imnlement and Hardware from 

the Benavtdes Indenendent School District, from 

thP Duval County Conservation and Reclamation 

DiRtri.ct and from Duval Cnunty commencin~ in 

71 and runnin~ throu~h and un to d,.tP, am I 

corrPct, and thesP documents came that you brought 

to us today renresent summar\~!1 of those checks 
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19 
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23 

t«" Brnltvf.df'R Imolf'ment and Hardware from the 

~chonl dlstrf.ct, the watf'r dtstrfct and the Duv~tl 

Cnuntv'? 

A Mr. Mitchf'll, I don't know anythin~ sbnut t~~ 

w~ttPr dtstrf.ct or thf' Benavtde~ Indeoendf'nt School 

Di.:<ltr{ct. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I under~tand that 

you went by and oicked ~n the ones that 

~tre nutsidf' of your 1urisdlction and I :<lUo-

oo~e nursu&nt to 1t stinul~ttion, it would be 

~tfoulated t~ b~ correct, am I correct, 

Counsel? 
I 

MR. ODAM: Yes, and I cAn clarify that 

for the rf'cord if you would like. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, let me mark them 

And I think we should orooerly mark them. 

(Msrked for identification by the 

reoorter &s R-91, R-92 and R-93.) 

MR. MITCHELL: As tn R-91., which 18 

the schedule of Account~ of Duvsl County 

THE MASTER: It is the schedule of 

what checks? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yf's, sir, I was goin~ 

to ask the witness. 
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THE MASTF.R: All rt~ht. 

~. MITCHELL: Strike t~~t, maybe ~er-

hao~ I h~ve ~ot the wron~ wftnesA. TheRe 

were actually nut to~ether by various ~~~n-

cte~ and brou~ht to~ether under ~n a~reement 

with Counsel and actually Mr. Hinojos~ has 

~tm0ly acted ~s t~e courfer ~or them. He 

doPA not, 1!1!'1 f.ndic&teci b' his &n!;!wer to the 

nuestfons, have oredfc&tP knowled~e. 

I suoooAe I will have to count on Mr. 

Odam to make a a~ioulatfon for me on that, 

ff I can make ft: That it is stioulated 

that R-91, 92 and 93 reflPct, Your Honor, 

thP date of checks, check numbers, claim 

numbers, the amount and the funds, the 

bud~et codP of monies ~ofn~ into -- and 

R-91 now from the County of Duval to Bena-

vfdes ImolPment and H&rdware, and R-92 from 

Benavides Indeoendent School District to 

the Benavides Imolement and Hardware and 

R-91 Duval County Conservattnn and Reclama-

tion District, into B~navfdes Imolement 

&nd Hardware Com0 any. 

Thesp were brou~ht over by Mr. Hfno1osa, 

delivered to Mr. Odam, 1o•ho f_n turn delivered 
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them t" me thfs mornln~ for Introduction T 
intn PvidPnt• ond om I tnrr•ct nn th•t, John? I 

MR. ODAM: YeA, Your R~nor, I would 

sti~ul~te for the record thAt R-91, R-92 

and R-91 are what Mr. Mitchell 1ust read 

off of them and what they contain, and to 

the best of my knowled~e thP · were oreoared 

by someone with the Attrrney General'~ 

office or ~omeone with the Te~as Deoartment 

of Public Safety and delivered by Mr. 

Hinojosa oursua-~ to our a~reement. 

T~ MASTER: All rt~ht. Now, ts R-92 

the school district schedule? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, it is BenAvides 

Indenendent School District to Benavides 

Imolement And Hardware. Let me show these 

to the Court and the Court can see what --

THE MASTER: And the thfrd one h the 

Conservation District? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Jud~e, R-93 is 

Duval County Conservation District and 

R-91, of course, ~~ the county and the 

Court can ~et some idea of t~e sco~e of 

them. 
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21 

,23 

•15 

(Handed to the Master.) 

?6951_ 

MR. MITC~LL: I have no more nues• 

ttons nf thfA witness, Jud~e, fn v~e~ nf 

the sttnulatfon we offer those into evidence, 

MR. ODAM: And I would oos,. sn ohj ec-

tfon wh~n the Court is resdy. Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: All r i g h t . 

MR. ODAM: Well, Your Honor, take for 

exam~le R-91, that ts the schedule of 

checks from t~~ county to Benavides !mole-

ment and Hardware. I would object on the 

~rounds of relevancy of R-91. 

A~mittedly, that there are in there, 

I would Aunoose, a comoutatfon of checks 

which ar~ already In evidence fn this case 

and to the extent those are in there, that 

objection would not a~oly. However, as to 

the othf'r claim numbers, et cf'tera, that 

are listed on R-91, I would object on the 

relevancy of tltat. ThosP. are not checks i.n 

dfsoute, they a 0oear to be checks from thP 

county to BPnavtdes Imolement and Hardware. 

We do not know for what ouroose that 

m~t be develooed by Mr. Coulin~'s testimony, 
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' " • 'I I· ,, 
8 ' 

10 

II 

II 

IS 

,. 
15 

11 

17 

II 

II 

• 
II 

• 
• 
II 

• 

- lon2 o~r'nd of tim~ from th~ School Dis-

vancy of thoR~. 

Th~y do not invnlv• •ntiti•s whfch wP 

say fn thf• c~~~~ that Jud2e Carrillo obtafn•d 

funds from. It would unduly tak~ uo the 

tfm~ of thP Court to P.~amine Mr. Coulin2 on 

why that monP.y wa11 obtain•d fnr thos~ ent1tfeR 

and for what ouroosP. and f.t would 1ust --

~2~1n, thP.y -re totally •rrelevant to what 

i11 beforP thfs court and I ReP no nPcPssity 

to 20 into th~m or ~v~n have tho~P sdmftt~d 

fnto evidE-nc•. 

MR. MITC~LL: I don't, of course, 

intE-nd, Your Honor, to ask the witness about 

~ach ~nd evE-ry ftem • I introduced them to 

show the full oieture, thP. fact that i5 

oofnted uo by Counsel on hfs orevious oues-

tionR to Mr. Coulin2. the •m~~nt of money 

comfn2 out of that onP si.nlllP county. 
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I think tt iR ~~finft~ly rrlrvAnt, 

THE MASTER: It ml!ly hP vlt~uPly rf'l~-

vl!lnt. I think I will ovPrru1P thP objpc~to~. 

(WhPr~unon E~hibits R-91, R-92 l!lnd 

MR. MITCHELL: I h~vf' no furthf'r cu~R-

tion~ of Mr. Hino1oRA, Your H"nor. 

MR. ODAM: Wf' h~tvP no nUPRt~on~. 

THE MASTF.k, Th~tnk you, very much. 

MR. ODAM: l-7Af.t _1uRt 11 mfnutf', 

THE MASTER: Wait, do you hl!lve l!lny 

nuPRtionR of tht~ ~entleml!ln? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, Rir, 

BY MR. ODAM: 

Q Mr. Hino,oRI!I, on R-91 -- let m~ m~tkP thiR off 

the r~cord. I don't know ff Mr. Mitchell h 

aware of thiR or not. 

THE MASTER: ThfR i.R off thf> reC'ord. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Yes, R{r. 

(Discu~Rton nff thP rpcorrl.) 

~----------------------------------------------
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THE MASTER: Back on the record. 

2 Did you have a further question, 

3 Mr. Mitchell? 

4 MR. MITCHELL: I do. 

5 

6 

1 

8 

9 RE-!!!!!!!!!!!.Q!! 

10 

u BY MR. MITCHELL: 

12 

13 Q 

14 

15 

16 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 

23 

2S A 

Mr. Hinojosa, we requested you to bring in the 

index cards of the checks going from Duval 

County and so forth into Benavides Implement and 

Hardware, did we not? 

Yes, sir. 

And these are in a series of R-182 and checks 

going into the Cash Store from Duval County? 

Yes, sir. 

Have you brought to court this morning a similar 

card, the original of those cards, with the tape 

showing the total of these going to Benavides 

Implement and Hardware and from the county? 

I could only find the ones of 1 71 and 1 72, the 
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12 

13 

14 

15 

16 Q 

17 

18 

19 

20 A 

21 Q 

24 

·25 

originals. The rest are copies of the index 

cards which are here up to 1975. 

You have with you '71 through '75? 

2700 

Just copies from the originals only fo-: '71 me 

'72. 

What is this tape, is that for the full time from 

'71 to 1 75? 

I have no idea. Somebody else worked that up. 

I don't know who it was. I didn't work it myself. 

MR. MITCHELL: Mark this, please. 

(The above-mentioned documents 

were marked R-94-1 through R-94-8 for 

identification.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I had marked for the record 

R-94-1 through R-94-8, and I will ask you if thesE 

are the copies and originals of those index cards 

you previously identified. 

Yes, sir. 

They relate to the checks from Duval County to 

Benavides Implement and Hardware which should 

be also reflected on R-91, is that correct, at 

least t~ the extent of those in April, 1971? 

In other words, looking at R-91, we should 
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be able to look at R-94-1 and find the 

corresponding claim? 

Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offe1' R-94-1 tl,rcue•~ 

and including R-94-8. 

MR. ODAM: We have our same objection 

as to the others, Your Hon(r. 

THE MASTER: That you made as to R-91 

through R-93? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MAS'J:.t.~.: It is overruled and they 

are admitted. 

MR. ODAM: We would like copies made of 

this for our own personal use, Mr. Vernon. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, we would also like 

a copy of the same. 

We have no further questions for this 

witness. 

May he be excused? 

MR. ODAM: We have no further questions. 

THE MASTER: You may be excused. 

MR. MITCHELL: We would like at this 

time -- I don't believe there has been a 

proper or official offer -- excuse the word 

"official," of R.-71 through 78, which were 
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the cheeks on the Olivera Implement and 

Zertuche General Store. These were the ones 

I questioned Mr. Couling about and I think I 

neglected to offer those and I wi!l malt.J t:·a"" 

offer at this point. 

MR. ODAM: We would object to that, 

Your Honor, as we did on t~e testimony as 

to the relevancy of th,.>se exhibits. 

THE MASTER: Y~s, but I overrule the 

objection and admit those. 

MR. MITCr .... ~LL: Your Honor, also, may 

Mr. Guerra be excused? 

THE MASTER: Yes, he may be. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I tell him, Your 

Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes, but do it quickly. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, my client will do 

that, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like to recall 

Mr. Couling. 
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RUDOLFO COULING, 

2 recalled as a witness, having been previously sworn, 

3 testified as follows, to-wit: 

• 
5 

6 

7 BY MR. MITCHELL: 

8 

9 Q 

10 

11 

12 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 

19 

21 

Mr. Couling, the attorney for the Examiner asked 

you concerning checks that were deposited in the 

Rio Grande bank anu I believe asked you as to 

E-173 series, do you recall that? 

Which check in particular? 

He asked you about E-173-15, which was the deposit 

slips, do you recall that? 

Yes, sir. 

So that the record is clear, the deposit slips --

now, that is the evidence introduced and admitted 

by this court, those deposit slips can be tied 

into the record by going into the checks previousl 

introduced 

and 5, and 

Let me 

the deposit 

the deposit 

in two series, that is, 151, 2, 3, 4, 

also 155 and so forth through 158. 

show you those and we 

slips, where there h 

of the account and we 
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to take those checks from Duval County and be able 

to trace 

MR. ODAM: The question as to the inter-

relation of those, I would stipulate that 

could be done, and apparently Mr. Mitchell 

has done it and I have also and I have made 

notes on that and we could get together and 

go over this and if yo~ have the same notes, 

then fine. 

For example, I could tell you E-57 

relates to a d~posit of November 27, 1972. 

MR. MITCHELL: To that extent, I wanted 

that as a predicate to the next question. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) In addition, Mr. Couling, I 

am going to hand you additional checks. There is 

a duplication of checks in the record and 

specifically 1 am going to hand you the series of 

E-65 and E-151 through 156 series. 

Let me hand you these and see if we can 

reconstruct these for the record. 

Actually, the Exhibit No. 69, do you have 

that with you? That would be in that stack and 

1 can --

MR. MITCHELL: 1 can save time, Your 
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Honor, and I can make -- E-69 is the same as 

E-51. They are one and the same check, one 

being an original and one a copy, am I 

correct? 

MR. ODAM: I don't have that right here, 

but that probably is correct, because earlier 

we had attempted to, with rlpies of checks, 

and the question was whether he could produce 

the originals and he provided some. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I make a statement 

that E-69 is t. .. e same as E-51; E-75 is the 

same as 152 and fo.r the record --

THE MASTER: Start over again. 

MR. MITCHELL: E-69, which is a Xerox 

copy of a check to Judge Carrillo, is the 

same as E-151, which is the original of that 

same check. 

In other words, Judge, that check is for 

one thousand eighteen dollars. It is not 

for two thousand thirty-six dollars, it is 

not two separate checks. E-75 is the same 

check as E-152, am I correct, Mr. Couling? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. This is the original 

and a copy. 

MR. MITCHELL: And E-76 is the same 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 78401 



2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22· 

23 

24 

25 

2706 

check as E-153 and E-82 is the same check 

as E-154. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: For a total o: seven 

thousand four hundred seventy-six dollars 

and not fifteen thousand, or whatever the 

double of that amount is. 

Have I just confu~ed the Court? 

THE MASTER: No, you have made it clear. 

I was hearing 71 as opposed to 171 and E-71 

is the photog~~ph of the witness, Chapa. 

That is the only confusion I have. What is 

the equivalent of E-171? 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't have E-171. I 

have these others -- I believe it is E-151, 

Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: I see, and the first one is 

E- what? 

MR. MITCHELL: E-69 is the equivalent 

of E-151. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. ODAM: Again, if that is what 

Mr. Couling states from looking at those, 

that is the case. 

I might state again that when the first 
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series were entered, those were Xerox copies, 

and the best evidence objection was leveled 

and he went back and checked and he brought 

those particular originals following that. 

Thera was a series of '69 and some more 

checks where he could not find the originals, 

so that is -- it was not o"r indication to 

make the inference there was a double amount. 

MR. MITCHELL: May we stipulate that 

the total amount is seven thousand four 

hundred seven-~·-six dollars? 

MR. ODAM: If that is what you say they 

total, that is fine. 

THE MASTER: Well, if it is wrong, I 

will find the correct number by adding it 

on an adding machine. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I have taken 

the liberty of taking out those corresponding 

exhibits and I have them available for the 

Court here or for counsel, in the event you 

want to compare between those. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, Mr. Couling -- strike 

that. 

Mr. Couling, Mr. Hinojosa, who just preceded 
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you on the stand, has brought for us a compilation 

which is admitted as R-91 through R-93, which 

appear to be the checks from Duval County to the 

Benavides Implement and Hal."di11are. The Co\trt he:-:t 

admitted those in evidence. R-92 is the checks 

from Benavides Independent School District to 

Benavides Implement and HardwarP. 

Yes, sir. 

And Duval County Conservation and Reclamation or 

R-93, 1971 to date, is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, if you will look at the last page of those 

exhibits, that is 91 through 93, you will find 

first -- you will find a total of one hundred 

eighty-two thousand two hundred sixty-nine dollars 

nineteen cents paid to your business, is that 

what the exhibit reflects? 

Yes, sir. 

And if you look at 92, you see that shows a total 

of one hundred nine thousand five hundred ninety 

dollars fourteen cents? 

Yes, sir. 

Artd 93, you will see seventy-six thousand seven 

hundred two dollars twenty-two cents paid to your 

business? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Or a total of three hundred sixty-eight thousand 

five hundred sixty-one dollars? 

Yes, sir. 

Out of all of that business -- strike that, if I 

might be able to, the fragmentary statement. 

Now, n.ot counting the checl J payable to 

Benavides Implement and Hardware, as relate to 

the date December, 1972 and forward, that is 

when the Caterpillar tractors were bought from 

Plains Machinery Co~pany of Corpus Christi, it 

appears that the checks numbered 151, 152, 153, 

154, 155, 156, 157 and 158 are the only checks 

that come out of the Benavides. Implement and 

Hardware account to Judge 0. P. Carrillo 

excuse me, including the Xerox E-165, the original 

which we do not have, is that correct? 

Yes. 

You may look at those. 

Would you repeat the question? 

I say, the only ones -- setting aside the checks 

payable to Plains Machinery, and we are talking 

about the checks going to Judge Carrillo, are 

E-151, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 157 and 158 and 

in addition, E-65. 
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A Only to him, these are what you are talking about? 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

The only ones you have issued that are in 

evidence. 

Yes, sir. 

As far as you know, Mr. Couling, there are not 

any more, other than those introduced by the 

Examiner, are there? 

I don't know, sir, I can't Hty one way or the 

other for sure. 

If the thrust of the formal complaint is here 

with checks coming trom you to him and the 

Attorney General has done a find job, a fine a 

job as indicated by the record, you would assume, 

if there would be more, they could have found 

them? 

Yes, sir. 

Let me ask you to pick up the checks you have in 

front of you there, do you have those? 

Yes, sir. 

If you add those figures, you will find that is 

a total of payments to Judge Carrillo of seven 

thousand four hundred seventy-six dollars and you 

add E-65 in there and that is eight thousand 

dollars, roughly. 

Well, whenever they add tham, they can get the 
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right amount. 

That is a total amount -- we are talking about 

seven thousand four hundred seventy-six dollars 

and you add that copy for a thousand, then that 

is eight thousand four hundred seventy-six 

dollars total -- I am sorry, my client, having 

done the arithmetic, the seven housand four 

hundred seventy-six dollar~ does include E-65. 

May I have the reco:cd changed to reflect 

that? 1 

THE MAS'l.:..~: Yes. 

(By Mr. Mi~chell) Now, taking 151 and all of 

the checks you have there, and see if that doesn't 

come up to a total of seven thousand four hundred 

seventy-six dollars? 

I can't add them, but I will agree if that is what 

you say. 

Okay. And of those checks, that is of those 

checks E-65, E-151 through E-158, all of those 

have recitals in the lower left-hand corner, 

either rent .on truck, tubing, and so forth, except 

four of them, and they are E-65, am I correct? 

There is no notation on that one. 

E-151, which has no notation? 

No, sir. 
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Q And E-158? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No, sir. 

And E-154? 

No, sir. 

Each of the others has a notation and there is a 

business record on it, which I understand your 

testimony to be that you are sa••ing that was 

business you did with Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, sir. 

And those that do not have notations, 158, for 

example, is appart= .. ·ly endorsed over to the Cash 

Store? 

Yes, sir. 

And there is then, on the reverse side, an 

endorsement by Abel Yzaguirre, that is his 

signature? 

Yes, I know him. 

To that extent, E-158 indicates that check from 

you, R. N. Couling, to 0. P. Carrillo, was 

negotiated to the Cash Store? 

According to the signature, it does. 

That leaves us without any notation on 151 and 154, 

is that correct? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

25 Q And 154 having a "for deposit" notation "only"? 
A Yes. 
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Q And 151, which ~n~arently is ~ -- ts endorsed 

credit to the account of the ~ayee? 

A Yes. !':ir. 

Q Out of all of those checks that we have listed, 

151 and 154 arP s-f.m~ly chf'cks from you to Jud~• 

Carrillo for v~tryin~ amounts in 1971? 

A Ytts, sir. 

0 All rt~ht. Now, I had --

MR, MITCHELL: May I h~tve the Exhi.bits 

back you are holdin~ therP, Mr. Coulin~, 

R-91, 92 and <.1.1. 

(H~tndPd to Counsel.) 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: I believe, Y~ur Honor, 

I believe that's all the Gues~ns I have 

of thf.s wttnttss. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor. Mr. MitchPll 

has asked Mr. Coulin~ if thert> are other 

c~ecks madt> out from Benavides Im~lement 

and Hardware to Jud~e 0. P. C~trrillo and 

his ~uestion was that or hf.s answer was 

that he dfd not know. 

I did not really ex~ect Mr. Mitchell 
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• I 
9 
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10 rl 

'I 
II 

j:, 

12 I 
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13 

IC 

IS 

II 

17 

II 

It 

tD 

II 

• 
• 
·u 

IS 

th,.t, I ••'11 'lt&tr t~at "" h"v"" 1111 of 

"n onnortunity to eYamtnr Mr. Cnulin~ on 

That mf~ht bf' t~ltt th11' '!I ht!l lln!l'!.>t>r 

tn thAt nut>~t~on, that t~rrr llrf' no -- ht'l 

An'lver" wA!I thAt hf' dld nnt know, but tf 

T~IE MASTER: Ynu mran r'l,z"t now? 

~. ODA M: Y P" , !1 f r. 

TqF. MASTER: How lnnJZ dn you ne~d? 

MR. FLUSC'ffi: About ftftrrn mtnute!l, 

MR. ODA't-1: And wr "rf' clo!le 

THE MASTER: And I t~tnk wr arr windin~ 

dnwn. I bPlfrve wr ~fll ffnf!lh today, don't 

you? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, 01ir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud,zr Mryrr!l, tht> 

nnly nroblrm nnw {!I thf!l• I mi~Zht oofnt 

nut that I hAve couchrd my rntfre rrbuttal 

nn the P7tf'nt of thP rPcnrd t"tat hes been 
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thrPe wePk~ nr how ton~ we hAVP been there. I 

2 

3 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

IS 

J&: 

II 

••• 

at. 

a. 

IS,· 

I mu8t qtatP nuite frankly to the Court 

that I Am t~ken bAck by the statement that 

Mr. OdAm iust made thAt thPre mi~ht be ~ome 

morP chPck~ by Mr. Coul~n~. 

THE MASTER: We are nnt at that ooint. 

All I h4ve bePn asked is to ~PP ff they rAn 

find any and ff they don't ffnd any --

MR. MITCHELL: No oroblem. 

THE MASTER: Then we are over thP 

hurdle. But it hey do, they we face thP 

uroblt>m. 

MR. MITCHELL: I th~nk the Court is 

tetlin~ me that I em cryin~ ouch before I 

em hurt and I think you are orobably correct. 

THE MASTER: Lfl't's tllkf" 11 little lon~er 

too. Let'~ be in recess untfl, s11y, 10:05 . 

(Whereunnn thE' heerfn~ was in rect>ss 

from 9:40 11.m. until 10:17 a.m.) 

THE MASTER: Are you ready to uroceed, 

M'r. Odam? 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have the renuest 

th11t he out ~own the time that we 11re takf.n~ 
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171 

back un, Jud~e. to s~ow the time snent by 

2 Counsel~ 

3 THE MASTER: Yes, we arP. -- I .1ust 

well, correct me lf 

5 I em wron~. I thtnk et 9:40 end WP. are 

6 takln~ back un at 10:17 or 10:16. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e MeyerA. 

8 

9 - - - - -
10 

11 EXAM!~'TION CONTI~ 

12 
BY MR. ODAM: 

13 

~ Q Mr. Coulln~. nrior to the time of t~e break, 

15 and I a~nreciete your indul~ence wtth us, the 

16 nuestion waA nosed to you by Mr. Mtrhell as to 

17 whether or not therP. was any ot~Pr checks, other 

18 than these admitted Into evidence, that you wrote 

19 to Jud~e 0. P. Carrtllo on the Benavides Imolement 

20 and Hardware account In the Sen Die~o State Bank. 

21 Dn you recall that nuestion? 

a A Yes, ~ir. 

·~ Q An~ do you recall your answer that you ~eve et 

24 that t{me? 

25 A I be1i.eve I said I didn't remember, I thou~ht f.t 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT l=tEPORTEFU 

717 ANTEL.OPE • GUARANTY BANK PL.AZA 
CORPUS Cr1RISTI 1 TE)(AS 78401 



2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

17 

II 

18 

21 

.22 

23 

IS 

ws~ sl1 of t~Pm, I don't know. 

Q Now, vou 

MP., ODAN: t-f~~trk th11t. 

E-174.) 

~~k you to PYIIminP it for A ~omPnt. 

0 I wi.ll hwP ·" f!UP~t·, for you • l>out ft. 

A "P.: • ., i r • 

rP~ortPr ~~~ E~hibtt E-175.) 

(H~tnded tn thP wftne~~.) 

(M~trked for i~ent{ficstfon hy thP 

r~nortrr ~~~ F.xhtbit E-176,) 

court reoortrr h11~ markPd As E~htblt E-176. 

(Hnndpd tn the witn~s~.) 
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2 
(Mark~~ for td~ntfffcation by th~ 

3 
r~oort~r a~ Exhibit E-177 and E-178.) 

Q I ~how you mhat th~ court r~o~rter ha~ mark~d 

s As E-177 And E-178. 

6 

(Hand~d to t~e witn~~s.) 
7• 

8 Q Have you had an onnortunlty to look at th~Re 

9 E~~ibit~ E-174 throu~h 178? 

10 A y f' ~ , ., f r . 

11 n All rfl!'ht, nm••, l~t · b~J!'an b~tck wtth E-174 And 

12 rAn you fdPntffy for th~ r~corrl, Mr. Cnullnl!', 

. 13 

lit A Thf.q ~ ~ 111 chPck marle out to 0. P. C11rri llo for 

IS 

17 A ThP fourth month, 14th d111y nf 7?, !cdr. 

R 0 Now, did you brlnl!' thi~ xeroyed cony with you 

II tod11y? 

A I don't remember. Yes. I believe I did. I 

tl don't remember, ~tr, if I did or not. 

D 0 Do you h11ve the ori~inal enny of 

23 A tho!;e checks 1 

A I mh;'"tt have. I don't know, ~fr, I c11n 1 t --
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Q St r? 

A I don't recAll •f I hav~ them or not, ~tr. I 

don't know. 

Q IhPltE>vP !'rPvfrm~ly you hl'lvt:> bPE'tt <HikE'd to fur-

chPck~ thAt you h~ve, howevPr. 

A I turned over all that I have, ~f~. 

0 All rf ght. 

MR. ODAM: Nnw, this chPck Exhibit E-174 

~e would offpr tnto evidPnce. 

MR. MITC~h~~: WP would object to the 

offer of E-174 on the grounds of be~t Pvi-

rE>oue~t a motfon for continuance nr ~ost-

nonement~ beyond the Rnectf~catton~ out-

lined in 1 through 1? in the formal notice 

We would Also object to t~e tntroduc-

tfon, Your Honor, of E-174 on the Rrounds 

bPin~ beyond the term of Judge Carrillo'~ 

nresent office, that iR as the Judge of thP 

229th Di~trfct Court! tt relates tn non• 

judiciAl actR and finally, Y~ur q~nor, we 

would object to the introductfon on the 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY SANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 78401 



2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

24 

prounds th~r~ is sim~lv no 1urtsdiction h~re 

for th~ ~ur~os~ of an tnoutry as to any 

Rlle~ed act tnvolvin~ E-174, the 1urisdtc-

tf.on of the Judtcf.Al Qualfi-lc-.tion Commis!li.on 

in this matter not havfn~ been or~vtously 

invoked. 

THE MASTER: WhAt i~ th~ ouroo~e of 

the offer? ObvinuAly, in th~ face of an 

nb1ectton, it can not exoand the scooe of 

this tnnuiry And be a ~rounds of comolaint, 

MR. ODAM: Correct. 

THE MASTER: Ar~ you offerf.n~ 1t 

~im~ly to r~but the su~~estion earlier mad~ 

by Mr. Mt tchell when he 11 sk~d thf" wi tnes~ 

the nuestton ere there any oth~rs? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Were there any others? 

MR, ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: I am not sure what the 

nu~stton was, but in my view, ft carried 

the same im"ltcation that these were all, 

there was a series of nuestions about five 

exce~t for thP Plains Imolement cheeks. 
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If that -- if that ts your ouroose, 

~{moly to qhow that that t~rust of nuestion~ 

fs inaccurate, I think tt fs admissible, 

Mr. Mitchell. 

MR. MITCHELL: I hate to nuarrel wtth 

the Court's ~tatement. 

THE MASTER: I am not su~~estinR you 

are auarrelin~. I am just asktn~ tf you have 

a res 0onse to it. I don't think lt is 

admissible to exoand the scone of t~is 

fnaufry at all but tt is -- there was a 

series of nuestions that tended to su~~est 

that those ff ve or s i.x checks tblt you handed 

the witness were all the ones there were 

and on all of those f"Xceot two or three 

there werf" notations. 

MR. ODAM: That's ri~ht. 

THE ~STER: Such as rent or oloe or 

so forth. 

MR. ODAM: And he testified, Your 

Hnnor, under oath, that was the case as I 

recall and if the Examiner 

THE MASTER: Now, thf" nuestton was 

thouRh it narrowed ttself 9 that f.s all tht>rf" 

arP in evidence. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I bttliPve I asked him, 

Y~ur H~nnr, I ~on't want tn nuarrel with 

thP Cnurt, thP thruAt of my ~ue~tion was at 

'"PVt>rlll WPPkA nf trtal, am I now faced with 

all of thP b11rl thtn~A I am facttd with and 

I out thP "uPstion to him so~ciftcally with 

that mnttve in mind, arr you ~otn~ to comP 

uo herP with anythin~ PlsP and I asked him 

is tht>re anythin~ f>lsP an~ he s~tfd I don't 

thf.nk therP b. 

And cPrtafnly if -- if thP Court will 

recall that vPry dumb fnnowuo nuestinn I 

~aid don't you think if they had bt>en scrao-

in~ tn~ethPr all of this time and wanted to 

ooint to mP, they would have found some 

morP, and hP said yes, that was thP reason 

for it. 

Jud~e. I think the Court's statement 

also r~t~ses an additinnal objPction which 

wp would li.ke to out to the nffpr of 174, 

~nd it would be hearsay, that is as it is 

THE MASTER: Well, the ob1ect:Lon that I 

am concttrnPd about is the best evtdencP 

I 
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rule. l: don't knllw th11t yruhllvf' mE>t it. 

MR. ODAM: Your H,..,nor, thE> I!;PntlE>man 

THE MASTER: I thought ht> salcl he 

didn't know. 

MR. MITCHELL: YPs, he rHcl. 

THE MASTER: I th4nk you net>d to 

dE>veloo that. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht, sir. 

Q You understand, Mr. joulin~, thP nuestlon is as 

to whprf', if you have the original cheeks that 

'~>'e havp here, now, my (!Uestion to you, do you 

hsvP in your oossession thp orf~tnat cheeks thnt 

have bePn m11rkPd here as E-174 through 178 that 

you havP f. dPnt i fiPd here to bt> CO){Ps 1 

A No, slr, I ~avP Pverythtn~ I rould flnd to the 

AttornPy General, sir, all I could ftnd, I gavE> 

to the Attorney Gt>neral. I dm't havP no checks 

from tl-tP stort> i.n my house. The only thfn~ I 

have is my oPrsonal account which ts a soectal 

sx:ount, whfch is my oerl'!nnal 11ccount, that~ is thP 

only onto I have. 

MR. ODAM: Well, Your H,..,nor, he has 

testified to hts unav11il11bflity of thosP 
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f.n hf !'I h11ndl'l. 

THE MASTER: YPs, hut doPs thP docu-

mPnt bPcome una~table hpcaul'le a witness 

p,ives it to --

MR. MITCHELL: To the Examiner. 

THE MASTER: -- to thP Examiner? 

MR. MITCHELL: Oh, no. 

MR. ODAM: But the "d.tnPs~' tel'lttmony, 

how~r. Your H"nor, iR he baR turned over 

to the AttornPy General's offfce all or{Rinat 

checks which he had. 

THE MASTER: That's correct. 

MR. ODAM: Now, the statement or the 

sttuatfon of thin~!'! is that he didn't turn 

over to ~ur office ori~inals of these checks. 

If he did, and we have numProus ortRlnals 

~hlch he ha~. none of which are these, if 

he did, we would out them into evidence. 

We have numerous oriRinals that he turned 

over to us that he did have, the ret we had 

to rely on from xeroxed cootes or ohoto-

static cooies of bank records. 

In other words, we didn't receive 

originals of these checks. If we dtd, we 

would out them into c~4dence as we did 
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otherR ~e rrcPtved. 

THE 'fASTER: I will cert~inly acce~t 

your reoresentntton for thP ~ur~ose of this 

dtscus~ton th~t you don't have the ori~inals. 

I think for the ~urooses of makin~ these 

co~tes admis~tble, unless Counsel will acce~t 

your ~tatement, you ere gofn~ to have to 

tPsttfy to that. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: Because you have got to 

prove, as I read tht> statute, that these 

calculated to make a correct co~y such as a 

~ero~, photostat and so forth, And that the 

orf.Jdnal is una-.lable. Isn't that more 

or less the test? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

THE MASTER: Now, I don't know, is there 

any stfnulation as to the -- as to the 

copyin~ ~rocPss of these? 

MR. ODAM: Well, these E-177 and 178 

and 176 art> on photostettr couy oaoer that 

the bank, Mr. Carl Wflltams, had made pursu-

ant to t>arlier -- just like the earlier 

situation on those ~h~cks. 
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MR. MITCHELL: It r~ises another objec-

tion th8t f~ not oro0 erly authenticated, 

We woul~ lfke to level th8t ob1ection al~o 

to the offer of 174, olease, tf it olease 

tl,e Court. 

M8y I ~neak ju~t briefly to the ~ues-

tion of the best evidence rvle, Your Honor, 

and then I wi 11 -- I ~u'Jmf t, y,ur Honor, the 

best evidence rule would be emasculated in 

it's entirety if Counsel and the witness 

were oermitted .y the simole exned{ency of 

Counsel, in ans~er to a oredicate nuestion 

to avoid the aoolication of the rule, to 

simoly testify, "Yes, I have the original, 

but I have delivered them to you", and then 

for Counsel to make the statement in ooen 

court, "I don't have them". 

I submit, Y"'ur Honor, that the --

that is not sufficient. 

THE MASTER: That is not wha t the 

witness testified to, 

MR. ODAM: That isn't what he said, 

THE MASTER: The witness testified he 

delivered a11 the checks he ~ould find, 

MR, MITCHELL: To the Attorney General. 
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TffiE MASTER: To th~ Attorney G~neral's 

to Ul'l. 

MR. MITCHELL: The orf J!f.nah? 

MR. ODAM: Of thesP. 

THE MASTER: That is, h' is orPoared 

to tei'Jtify, 

MR. MITCffiELL: My uuestion is where 

did th~y ~Pt the conies? 

MR. ODAM: 7 rom the bank. 

MR. MITCHELL: Then my objection is 

to authentication and that is why I made 

it. 

THE MASTER: And the oh1ection, 1od.th 

respect to authenti.cati.on, is ~ood, Mr. 

Odam. 

Now, you indicated thAt 174 ts a 

~ero~. 

MR. ODAM: Of a bank cooy, of a bank 

photostatic cony as E-175, it is a ~ero~ed 

cony of ~ bank ohotostati.c cony. Unlftss they 

orovided us with a xerox. 

THE MASTER: I a~ree thP~ they are not 

authenticated and -- I a~ree they are not 
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authenticated. I think with your re~resen• 

tation that you will testify that they werP 

not delivered to thP Attorney General's 

office, I would think the test of una~labflit 

ha!l been mf't. 

\ 
\ 
\ 

--------·-------
CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 

COURT REPO.-TE.AS 
717 ANTEL.OPE • GUARANTY BA~K PL.AZA 

CORPUS C: HRISTI, TEXAS >1•01 



2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

18 

20 

21 

- 22 

23 

25 

2729 

MR. MITCHELL: May I ask one question 

on voir dire on the left observation on the 

Court on the availability, Your Honor? 

THE M\STER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I see the exhibits, 

please? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: I lo so with the express 

intent, of course, not to waive any objection. 
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Y.Q.l! D I R E 

2 

3 BY MR. MITCHELL: 

s Q 

6 

7 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 

14 

IS A 

16 Q 

17 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 

21 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 

2S 

These checks that have been marked 174 through 

178, you have examined the copies of those, have 

you not? 

Yes, sir. 

And they are checks written by Benavides 

Implement and Hardware to Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

Yes, sir. 

In the normal course -- and each and every check 

is drawn on the First State Bank of San Diego, 

Texas? 

Yes, sir. 

At a time when the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware maintained a checking account in 1972? 

Yes, sir. 

And the originals of these checks would have been 

returned in the due course of the banking 

business to you, would they not? 

Yes, sir. 

And those originals would have come to your 

possession at the time they were Blnt to you by 

the bank? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

As far as you know, you got the originals? 

I received them, and when we made the income tax, 

I believe they were in the store, and when 

Mr. Garcia passed away, I could not find them. 

Had you had the originals at one time? 

Yes, sir. 

You testified earlier that tnese checks were neve% 

delivered to the Attorney General? 

All I could find were, sir. 

When did that delivery occur? 

Somewhere, I believe, in early September. 

1975? 

Yes, sir. 

Did you make an inventory of the items delivered? 

I don't remember, sir. I can't say yes or no. 

Did you box them? What was the size, how much 

material was delivered to the Attorney General? 

Everything I had from the beginning up to 1974, 

I believe. 

As relates to the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware account? 

Yes, sir. 

And your personal and special rrach account? 

No, just the Benavides lm?lement and Hardware 
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account. 

To whom did you make that delivery? 

I believe Mr. Blanton. 

You did del!.ver all the ba'tlk statements and 

cancelled checks you could find? 

Yes, sir. 

And the deposit slips? 

I don't know whether it was together with them 

or not. I handed them to them as I got them 

from the bank. 

tvas that part of Lh- audit material prior to 

1975 you had earlier told us about? 

It was 1 71, '72 and 1 73, the ones they audited. 

MR. MITCHELL: We ~enew our objection. 

THE MASTER: Well, only with respect 

to authentication is the objection sustained, 

Mr. Mitchell, I might add that only 

one exhibit has been offered and that is 

E-174. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is correct, just 

174, and the objections are made to 174. 

MR. ODAM: The assumption was that we 

had offered 175 through 178 as well, which 

we do offer at this time. 

MR. MITCHELL: I plead surprise in ordet 
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to meet the matter and we object to it as 

beyond the scope of the formal notice, the 

First Amended Notice and no jurisdiction 

as reg~,rds the expans.ton of those notices 

and we also object on the grounds that it is 

beyond the term rule, the office of Judge 

Carrillo commencing on Jan1· Lry 1, 1975, and 

the checks all being i~ 1972; best evidence 

rule, hearsay and improper authentication. 

THE MASTER: Well, they are admitted 

if they are -- .hey are not admitted, because 

I don't think they are authenticated, but 

if that occurs, then I will admit them for 

a limited purpose of rebutting the 

examination you made of this witness earlier 

today suggesting that the only checks that 

went to Judge Carrillo were the ones that you 

handed to him and he held in his hand. 

I can't quote the testimony exactly, but 

that is the thrust of your examination. 

MR. MITCHELL: We would further levy 

the objection that it is an attempt to 

impeach their own witness. It constitutes 

an effective impeachment of their own 

witness. 
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THE MASTER: That is overruled. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, we would tender, 

for the purpose of a Bill of Exception, 

these lxhibits, and I would like to determine 

the availability of whether or not to have 

Carl Williams drive back over here to say he 

made these copies. We wou11 want to go 

into what purpose --

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me --

'THE MASTER: He said on a Bill of 

Exception. 

MR. MITCHELL: I appreciate that, but 

it is hard for me to see the relevancy and 

I am without being contemptuous, and without 

detracting from the record, I am saying this 

is subtrafuge and this Court has ruled as 

regards the collateral matters and we would 

object to, of course, this line of questioning 

and I think the cases hold the bill is 

properly made when the objection is made 

and sustained as to the exhibits. 

THE MASTER: You may proceed. You say 

as a bill, it is a bill, because the document 

is not in evidence. I take it, if you g~t 

the document in evidence, you are going to 
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offer the bill itself? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: You may proceed. 

MR. MITCHELL: That certainly puts me 

on a disadvantage on cross-examination. If 

he goes into the collateral matters and 

authenticates them from a witness, then it 

would be limited to objection. If he goes 

beyond that, thereafter he succeeds in 

authentication, then I would be precluded in. 

my cross-examit~< ... tion on the purpose of them. 

THE MASTER: Well, I am simply following 

what I think the Supreme Court said in the 

first Southwest Airline case, that the court 

should allow full billa to be developed. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand that. 

THE MASTER: I don't understand why you 

think you are limited in your cross-

examination. You would be free to cross him 

on anything that Mr. Odam develops. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would submit, Your 

Honor, the purpose for the rules are 

defeated. I have no notice of these checks 

and he is going to be permitt~d to develop 

them thoroughly on a Bill of Exception. 
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I don't know anything else to do except 

2 request time to investigate them. 

3 THE MASTER: That will be taken under 

4 advisement. 

5 MR. ODAM: May I have just one moment? 

6 THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: May I P3k the witness one 

8 more question? 

9 THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 V 0 I R ---- ~!!! 

16 (CONTINUED) 

17 

18. BY MR. MITCHELL: 

19 

20 Q 

21 

22 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Mr. Couling, do you know of any other checks now, 

other than those five you just identified and 

those four or five we talked about this morning? 

I can't remember, there might be a lot more. 

Do you know? 

I can't remember. After going through a lot of 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 78401 



2 

3 Q 

4 

5 A 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2737 

checks, I can't remember. How can I remember one 

particular check? 

You testified under oath these are the ones you 

remember now? 

I don't know if there is a lot more, sir; I don't 

know. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, I submit I really 

don't know what funct1on I am performing. 

I can't stop them from being generated and 

this is a terrible way to try this case. I 

submit I don't know what he is talking about. 

Certainly counsel can notify me whether 

he got any more delivered or not. 

THE MASTER: You may proceed, Mr. Odam. 

MR. ODAM: May I have just one moment, 

Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

Now, you may proceed on your Bill of 

Exception. Mr. Odam. 
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2 

3 BY MR. ODAM: 

4 

5 Q 

6 

7 

8 

9 A 

10 

11 

12 Q 

13 

14 

15 A 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

24 

25 

I show you again E-174 through E-178, the first 

being a copy of a check to 0. P. Carrillo for 

one thousand dollars. Can you r~ate for what 

purpose this check was writ~en to Judge Carrillo? 

It was made from the county and the county made 

a check to the store and I in turn made a check 

to 0. P. Carrillo L~r one thousand dollars. 

And I show you E-175 in the amount of nine hundred 

ninety-seven dollars to Judge Carrillo. For what 

purpose did you write this check? 

The same purpose. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have a continuing 

objection to this Bill of Exception and why 

these were written? 

THE MASTER: You may, however, this is a 

Bill of Exception and I do not understand tha 

I have the authority, unless it gets -- I 

suppose at some times I have the authority to 

cut off the bill --

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I just don't want 

to waive any of my objections. 
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THE MASTER: You have them all. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. I will let 

counsel proceed without any further 

interruption. 

MR. ODAM: It is my understanding that 

this is totally for the Bill of Exception 

so that we can make a deter~ination of 

whether or not to get lfr. Williams over here, 

if they are not authenticated, because they 

are not in evidence. 

THE MA.S·.L ..... : I regard the two as 

divisible. It may be I will let the checks 

in and make a different ruling on the 

testimony. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand the Court 

overruled all of my objections except 

authentication. 

THE MASTER: I have not ruled on this 

testimony, because this is not coming into 

the record; it is on a Bill of Exception. 

There is no point in ruling on testimony 

that comes in on a bill. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't think I am making 

myself clear to the Court. The purpose of 

this check is unrelated to authenticity. My 
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comments and objections are that if the 

Court has overruled my objection, except 

the best evidence rule and perhaps 

authentication, then the question of purpose 

is immaterial. The development of the 

Bill of Exception to the question of the 

objection is the only way tv go. 

THE MASTER: You t.re suggesting that he 

should not, with this witness, develop this 

exhibit any further until he gets it into 

evidence? 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right, except 

as to the specific grounds for which the 

objection was sustained, otherwise, why the 

rules of evidence? 

THE MASTER: That is certainly one 

route the proceeding could take, but I don't 

think that is the only route and you may 

proceed, Mr. Odam. 

(By Mr. Odam) I show you what has been marked 

E-176 and ask you if you can identify this check? 

It is dated September, 1972, a check to 0. P. 

Carrillo for two thousand six hundred forty 

dollars, from the Benavides Imple~rant and Hardware 

on the First State Bank of San Diego. 
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3 Q 

4 A 
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6 Q 
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8 A 
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10 

11 Q 

12 A 

13 

14 Q 

15 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 

19 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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What is the purpose of that? 

It says loan, but I never made him a loan. 

For what purpose was that check made? 

It was money coming to my store from Duval County 

and the money had to go to 0. P. Carrillo. 

I show you what has been marked E-177, which is a 

check I will ask you to identif: . 

This :f.s a check dated .Janua.:y 4, 1972, in the 

amount of seventy-seven dollars made out to 0. P. 

Carrillo. 

For l-rhat purpose d1<.. you write that check? 

On that small amount, sir, I can't testify, but 

I don't believe it was for anything. 

You were just writing him a check for seventy-seve~ 

dollars? 

Yes, str. 

And this check is also in 1972, can you identify 

it? 

THE MASTER: Exhibit number what? 

I am sorry, Exhibit 178, can you identify that? 

Yes, sir, January 17, 1972, to 0. P. Carrillo for 

nine hundred dollars from the Benavides Implement 

and Hardware. It is the same transfer, just to 

give money from the county back to the judge 

through my store. 
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MR. ODAM: Would you mark these? 

(The above-mentioned documents were 

, marked E-179-1 through E-179-29.) 

(By Mr. Odam) Now, I show you what has been 

marked as E-179-1 through E-179· ~9, and ask you 

if you can identify these. 

THE MASTER: E-179-1 through E-179-29? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

(By Mr. Odam) Can ~ou identify these? 

Yes, sir. 

Look at them first and I will have some questions 

to ask you about these. 

(Exhibits handed to witness.) 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840, 



----~--------------------------------------~1~ 

2 

3 

4 

5 

I 

7 

a 

9 

10 . 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

II 

II 

21 

23 

IS 

Q (By Mr. Od11m:) HllvP you h11d 11n o~nortunlty to 

1nok 11t 179-1 throu~h 17~-19~ 

A YP~, !'lfr. 

0 An~ r11n you ~PnPrally t~Pnttfy for th~ r~cord 

A ThP~P IITP rhPrks from thP B~navtdPS Im~lemPnt 

11nd H11rdwarP Comnany drawn on thr Ftr!'lt State 

B11nk nf San Dte~o n11y11ble tn t~Farm and Ranch 

1111 frnm my qtore, ~tr. 

Q And you si~ned 1111 t~esP checks? 

A YPS, JII{T. 

Q And all of the~P are ort~111 chPcks? 

A YP!!, !'dr. 

MR. ODAM: w, offpr fnto f'vidf'nce, 

Your Honor, 179-1 throu~h 179-29. 

MR. MITCHELL: WP ob1ect on thP ~rounds 

of hear11ay. We nlead !lurnrtse, and Wf' 

renuest a continuance and nostnosement to 

nro~erly df'fend a~11in11t t~Pm! beyond the 

format notice, bPyond the first amended 

non-judlcfat acts •~ between R. M. Coulin~. 

F11rm and Ranch Sunnl~ Com~any. 
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Thr~ fs absolutely nn notice or any 

ty!)f" of 11 fashf.on or form of connPction, 

Your Honor, and certainly are not invited 

by the orfnr nuestt~ns out to thP witness. 

We ob1ect further nn the ~rounds of 

hearsay and I believe that is all, Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: What is t~P !'Uronse of 

the offer, Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the nuestion was 

out to the witness whether or not he had 

issued any C'hP •. " to JudJte 0. P. Cam llo. 

The answpr "'as he df.dn 1 t know f.f he df.d or 

not. 

These checks made out to -- are made 

out to the Farm and Ranch Store. The !)revi-

ous testfmony in this case whfch has not 

yet been dtsouted or fs in nuestton actually 

fs that the Farm and Ranch StorP of BPnavides, 

Texas, t.Jas a oartnershio owned by o. P. 

Carrillo and by Ramiro Carrillo. 

We wold submit that these checks are 

offered, while they are not made out as the 

!)reviouA oneR on the bi.ll of exceotions, 

are made out to the Farm and Ranch Store 

which is a oartnersht!) which 0. --~ Carrillo 
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Rnrl RrP offered for that ~ur~ose. They are checks 

that Rre issued w~fch indirectly Jud~e 0. P. 

CRrrillo received thP benefit of since hP owned 

the Farm and Ranch Store. 

I recall for the record the .estimony of 

Cleofu~ Gonzalez and the testimony of Mr. Coulin~ 

l)rl!'viously. 

MR. ~ITCmgLL: I might state for the 

record, Your Hoitvr, I am not l)re~ared to 

try the FRrm and Ranch Suonly as it relates 

to thP Judicial Qualftcation rules. 

I ~ould also !)lease, therefore, there 

Is no 1urisdtction here as re~ards the tri-

an~le thPy are l)Uttin~ us to trial on. 

MR, ODAM: Your Honor, i.t is not the 

fntention to exnand the notice or char~P 

Jud!!e C8rrf.llo wtth ukln~ t-hi.s money from 

the county. Wp do subm'f. t, how81Pr, that the 

check~ are checks nursuant to earlier nue~-

tiona which went to Jud~e 0. ?. Carrillo 

since t~ey went to the Farm 8nd Ranch Sunoly. 

THE MASTER: So you 8re ~fferin~ them 

a~8f.n to disl)el the inference that was left . 
CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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P~rll~r thfs mnrnin~ that th~ ~nly checks 

2 ~~in~ from thP BPnavfdPs Imnl~mPnt and 

3 H~rdwl'!rP werP thP ff.ve or ~~; i:x that werP 

4 

5 MR, ODAM: Yes, Y~ur Honor. 

6 THE MASTER: To Jud~e Carrillo? 

7 MR. ODAM: May I add th" ob1ectf.on 

8 

9 in~ to tmoeach his witnes~. Jud~e Meyers. 

10 THE MASTER: I will ovPrrule the 

11 ob1ectlon. B~~ I may ch~n~e my rutin~ on 

12 that one, Mr. Odam, 

13 

14 

15 

16 EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

17 
BY MR. ODAM: 

18 

W Q Mr. Coulin~. these checks 179·1 throu~h 179-19 

·ao are in PvidPnce in this case. 

21 I take it from your testimony that Pach one 

Is In varyin~ amounts to Farm an~ Ranch Suooly 

23 and I believP {t was your orevious testimony that -

MR. ODAM: Strike that. 

~ Q N~w, I do not intend to ~o with you in detail 
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throu~h 29 ch~ck~, ~ach and every one of these 

checks. Why would you issue to Farm and Ranch 

Suonly these checks. 

My ~uestion is to you, would you ex~lain to 

the Court and rP.cord why the Benavides Hardware 

Comnany would issue these cheeks, these amounts 

genPrally to the Farm and Ranch S~ooly and to 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

MR. MITCHELL: The best evldenee rule 

would apoly. The cheeks s~eak for them-

selves and the notations contained thereon 

and we would object as to the whys and 

wherefores, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: Overruled. 

(Handed to the witness.) 

MR. ODAM: Judge, while he's looki.n~ 

at these cheeks, I do understand it was over-

ruled and they were admitted. 

THE MASTER: Yes, E-179-1 throu~h 

29 is ~tdm{tted. 

(EYhibft E-179-1 throu~h E-179·29 were 

1.1dmitted into evidence.) 

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, I want to 
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~n back to a much earliPr day while Mr. 

Coulfn~ is looktn~ ~t thosP chPck~ and tt 

ts on a com, let ely df. fft>rf"nt ~ubJect. 

My recn· •. 1 ectf.on 1 s not clPitr. I m11d~ 

some n~tes on tt and I have been rPreadfn~ 

the record. What ts the status as you 

understand.ft of that rathPr thick re,ort 

that the wttness GaTland Smith "re,ared? 

Did I resPrve rutin~ on f.t? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, !dr, I bt>li.eve thP 

Court had reserv~d it's rutin~ at the tfmP 

ft was offerPd, I ob.1ected and the Court 

!-!tudtPd it ~tnd two d11ys later .... 
THE MASTER: Sustatned thf" oh1 ection? 

MR. MITCHELL: Sustained the ob_1ectton. 

THE MASTER: That f. !I! wh!t I recall, but 

{f f.t {R not, H is su!'ltatned now, 

MR. MITCHELL: It was "ut into the 

record aA a "art of the bill of t>XCf'1)tton, 

that was my recollf'ction, Jud~e. Mf'yers. 

MR. ODAM: That is my rf'collectton also, 

Your Honor. 

(Df.scussf.on off the record.) 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) You have t>~amined the checks, Mr. 
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A YE"!>, •dr. 

0 Dn vnu rf'c~tll thP ttUP!It bt why you would f.ssue 

w.rp to Farm ~tnd R~tnC"h Su"oly, th11t f.s my tJtf!!tf.on. 

A y,.~. !" f.r. 

Q ~~~~t i~ your ~tn~wer to that nuf'~t'on~ 

A On ~omf' of thf'se, I believP 'n thf' be~innin~ the 

r~f'cks -- the bi11s wPrP madP by Cleofus 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Your Honor, 

I havl' a runnil.,_ or continuinl! obj f'Ct~ on, 

~f not, I cPrtaf.nly want to objeet that ft 

is way bf'yond the scooe of noticP. I h~tve 

no notice, I olead surorisP and I want a 

C'ontf.nuance and oostoonemf'nt. 

He i~ ~Pttin~ rPady to come f.n on ~omr 

to dumo all nf that in thP rPcord and I want 

to ob_1ect. 

I cert~tinly don't want to be by my 

~ill'nCP, tn b~ understood that I w~tivP any 

of my "rf.or ob1ecti.on~. Ju«'~e MPyers. 

THE MASTER: Wpll, you don't, but I 

h~tve ~tdmittf'd all of thf.s, not to exoand 

~tny of the amolatnts or counts, but solely 
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~arli~r t~fs mnrnin~ th~t th~ only ch~cks 

that w~nt to Jud~~ Carrillo ver~ somP four 

or fivto or s{7:, I don't rPmf'mbf"r hnv many, 

~nd that totaled, as I rPcall some -- do 

you recall that number? 

MR. MITCHELL: Sev~n tl ~usand four 

hundred ·-

THE MASTER: Some s~v~nty•four hundred 

dol hrs. 

MR. MITCK~~L: Yes, and then, of course. 

Ynur Honor, on that ~oint, 179-1 throu~h 

179-29 to Farm and Ranch, and thPy are 

endorsed for de~osit only Farm and Ranch, 

and sf~ned by Cleofus Go~Eale~ and othEr 

~Po~lto, not 0. P. Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) Gn ahead, Mr. Coulin~. 

A At the beginnin~ the bills were made at Farm 

and Ranch usin~ my invoices taken to the county, 

checks wer~ issued and in turn I was told by 

Ramiro that all of the eh~eks that were brou~ht 

to m~. tf I didn't h•ve no sales ~n be made 

dfr~ctly to the Farm and Raneh, I didn't sell no 
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~unnlf~s at 811 to th~ Farm anrl Ranch, I d~dn't 

buy ftnythfn~ from t~Pm. 

The bflls thftt wer~ nrorlucrd by them ftre 

b~ll~ that I wft~ told by Ramiro to meke mys~lf. 

THE MASTER: But wh~t Ramfro told you, 

I think fs ~ub1ect to t~P hear~ay objpction, 

Mr. Odam. 

~m. ODAM: Your Horor, ftt thts timP 

and I nPdP a note of it at thP Pnd of our 

case and for the state, this f~ our last 

wftnr~~ unless L~ is Mr. Carl Williams, 

would reur~e for consideration by the 

Court the h~arsay objectton and all of the 

t~stimnny that had been ~iven by this wit-

nes~. narticularly -- anrl the other witnrs~e~, 

on the pycention to the hearsay rule 8S 

the declaration a~ainst ~ecuniary interests 

as ~tatements made by Ramiro Carrillo to 

thfs wftne~;s, 

I bPlf~v~ the te~tfmony has been 

renletP by the -- from thi!'l ,.,.f tn~ss and 

others ~~~ to the ~OP!'Ii.ble ~P('Uniary intell!l'tt 

that could be incurred by one Ramfro Carrillo 

as a result of the checks th~t have ~one to 

0. P. Carrillo. 
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Al~o, we ~ee by the ~tatements here 

that there was a oArtners~io between 

correction, by a orevious testimony, a 

oartner~hlo between 0. P. Carrillo and 

Ramiro CArrillo in the Farm and Ranch Store 

and here we have checks, some of which are 

based uoon invoices to the ~~unty and for 

which Benavf df'~ Implemer,t snd Hardware 

received no benefit. 

I believe the witness has testified, 

or would testt~y. that Farm and Ranch re-

ceived no benefits. So I a~ain, as to the 

hearssy objection, I would reur~e considers-

tion of the declaration a~sinst pecuniary 

tnterestl'l. of Mr. Ramtro Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: I will overrule th11t 

ob1ection. You have rafsed somethin~ in 

my mind, out of court hear~ay statement of 

one partner i~ not admissible a~ainst the 

other, ts it? 

MR. ODAM: No, Y~ur Honor, in all 

csndor I don't know that e~ceotion to the 

hearsay rule. 

THE MASTER: I don' t t h l n k H is . I 

wilt sustafn the objection with resoect to 
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r~s~~ct to th~ t~sttmony h~ 1ust ~ave. 

MR. ODAM: And as a further -- and I 

don't thlnk I have &ny additional ~uesti~ns 

of this witness, these ch~cks in li~ht of 

what Mr. Coultng has now stated, checks 

were Admitted for th~ ~urno~e of rebuttin~ 

the inferPnce that no c~ecks were issu~d to 

0. P. C&rrillo and also they are offered 

for the nuroose of showin~ the ~en~ral 

course of con~~-t by Mr. Coultn~ in the 

issuance of checks to Farm and Ranch and to 

show thf" enti.re scheme of which we havf!' 

~one throu~h with sl~ days of this witness. 

In other words, th~ overall cour~~ and 

conduct involved f.n thf.R entire oattern of 

issuance of cheeks from the county, from 

Benavides Imnlement and Hardware. 

These ar~ all, we would submit -- the 

ones that arP in ev4d~nce, oarttcularly which 

we have ~one fnto and which ar~ in our 

notice of formal oleadin~s and the am~nded 

notie~ of formal oleadin~s. all as we statE' 

in our nleadinga. show the fraudulent scheme 

of fraudulent slios fnto the county and the 
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county i~~uin~ th~ ch~cks out th~r~from. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, Jud~~. I know I 

h8ve bPen restridPd ln ~hat my ob1ections 

ar~, but now this monolo~ue, I am ~oin~ ~o 

continue to ob1ect to ft. 

THE "fASTER: Sust~ti.ned. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, thi~ fs --

THE MASTER: I sustained your objec-

tion. 

MR. MITCHELL: All riJZht, sir. 

MR. ODAM: They are offered for the 

course of conduct, Ynur Honor. 

THE MASTER: I ~o not admit them for 

that ouroos E'. I admft them for the ouroose 

that you stated initially to show that the 

four or five checks this witness was ques-

tionec:l about by Mr. Mi.tchf'll earlif'r this 

mornlnl!', leavtn~ the tnfC?rence that those 

arC? the? only ones that went to Jud~e Carrillo 

or for hts benefit, was a mis1Padinl!' infer-

ence. 

MR. ODAM: We oass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: There is no way tn the? 

world I can oreoarC? to examine htm, Judl!'e. 

I asked him 11 ttURtion under oath, "Is there 
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any morP cJtet"ks". and he !'lays h~ dof!'sn't 

know and I ~Pt somf' mnrf' and I'll bf' auttf' 

frank, I 8m Vf'ry frustratf'd. 

I hav~ been at this for tw~nty•five 

years and I th~nk the bf'~t thin~ for me to 

do is to ~asq him back and rest. 

THE MASTER: Thf' Exami.,Pr hallm't restf'd 

MR. MITCHELL: I nef'd some more time 

to eommencf' an investigation into these 

additional chec~s. I am not ~o{n~ to lPt 

tf I have got to sof!'nd thf' nf'Yt ten yf'ars 

~ettin~ to thP bottom of them. 

But, Your Honor, ~utte frankly, I cannot, 

I am not that agilP. I cannot take within 

a ~eriod of about an hour thf' Exhibits 174 

through and tncludln~ 179-1 throu~h 29, 

that ~s thirty-three some odd Eyhibits and 

cross-examine and I am just not goin~ to 

soeak to this record that I can do that 

lntelli~f'ntly. 

THE MASTER: I do not beli.evf', Mr. 

Mitchell, that 174 throu~h 178. Examiner's 

ExHbits, are i.n f'vtdence, thf'y are not, !'lO 
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179. 

MR. MITCHELL: There are twenty-nine 

checks. 
• 

THE MASTER: Str? 

MR. ODAM: There are twenty-nine checks. 

THE MASTER: Yes, ~tr, that's right. 

MR. MITCHELL: I a;n certllinly not 

~re~ared to defend on Farm and Ranch, Jud~e 

Meyer,;, 

THE MASTEh; How much t1me do you 

want? 

MR. MITCHELL: I would say between a 

week and two weeks fnr twenty-nine checks. 

MR. ODAM: Yor Honor, may I make a 

comment? 

THE MASTER: Of course, I'm not sure 

you sRy you had no notice. You ~et into a 

trial and a matter fre~uently comes into 

evidence that you don't know about, and this 

h tn evidence reobutttn~ somethtn~ that you 

01)ened u,, 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor, had 

these been checks to -- well, first, let 

me say this now that has been -- and so 
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that {t wi~l be clear nn the r~e~rd, we 

have ~nt three Attorney Gen~rals that have 

a mas~iv~ -- olus all of them other folks 

t n Duv11 1 County, t h.-y i.ti!VP bf'f'n over thf'rf' 

di_J!:~inl!: thtc; matert!tl uo for the taRt four 

or ftve month~. soent thousands of dollars 

of the ta~ oayers' money an~ to tell me 

that thf'y foeus today em t"te fact that they 

cannot orodu~e but seven checks or five 

checks, 11nd nut of fairness to the record, 

Your H~nor, of coursP, I ~f' had myself, and 

it seems to me that certainly that the Judf-

cial Qualification~ Commission could havf' 

set out in it's notice way back there tn 

May or the amendment, tie-in all of these 

checks and we would have called -- at least, 

we would havf' been out on notice that we are 

~otng to be defendin~ the Farm and Ranch~ 

THE MASTER: I do not bel if've that 

any nleadf'r ts re~uired to olead his evi-

dPnce and this is simoly evidence rebuttin~ 

somethinl!: you ooened uo this morntn~ in my 

view. It ts not admitted to orove --

MR,· MITCHELL: WPll, I have no QUf'Stions 

of this wttnf'ss then, Jud~e. 
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THE MASTER: It is not admttt~~ to 

n~ov~ misconduct. I did not admft it f~~ 

that nur~o~~. Do you hAv~ anythtn~ eisP, 

MR. ODAM: No, sir, ~Yc~nt to mak~ the 

THE MASTER: You trP not ~ofn~ to call 

Mr. Wi.lli ams? 

MR. ODAM: That is correct, in lfght 

of Mr. Mitch~ll's RtatPment, I would not 

In his lack of nrenaredn~ss to the new 

nhoto~tatic b~~or·· cony recmds, I 1-•ould not 

at thfs tim~. and will not, call Mr. 

Williams to admit those. 

So th~y stand simnly on the bill of 

~xcentions and th~se are sfmnly to rebut 

the inference that no oth~r checks were 

offered. That {s the status of the record 

and we nass -- we have no further ~u~sttons 

of this witness and --

(Di~cuss{on off the record.) 

MR. ODAM: And the only f'vfdenc~ that 

w~ hav~ l~ft would be thf' final accountin~ 

of Mr. Bates which is back on the ~arlfer 

article. 
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MR. MITCHELL: If I werP ~reoared I 

would hAve many ouestfons of h~m. Jud~e 

Meyers . I am not ~reoAred and , conseauently, 

I have no furtiter quP.stious of hi.lb. 

THE MASTER: You may steo down, Mr. 

Coulin~. I gues~ Mr. Coulin~ i.s free to 

11!;0. 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Couling, you are a free 

man. 

THE MASTER: But not to take those 

with you. 

MR. OIAM: But not to take the checks. 

(Dlscusston off the recor~.) 

(WherPu~on the witness was excused.) 

THE MASTER: Where f.s the final account-

fng that you want? 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Flu~~:chP has f. t' si.r. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: y,ur Honor, for thP 

~ur~osP. of thP record, I understand the 

Court now luts refused a ~ost,onement or 

request for a continuance to l)reoare for 

cros.s-examinati.on on t 79-1 .:hroull!;h 29. 
~ '·· t 
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""l 

week and ~ hslf, which is what your re~ust 

was, was tt not? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, 1 th:tr,t;: cuitf' 

frankly it would take me that much time, 

Jud~e. on thi~ new as~ect of the casP. 

THE MASTER: Excusf' me 1ust a minute, 

but for th~ r@cord, I would recess certainly 

over the we~kend and maybe until Tuesday 

or Wednesday of neYt we~k. 

MR. MITCR~::.. .... L: Well, fiUHe frankly, 

Your Honor, may I state that for the record, 

I was oreoared this morni.n~ to ~ut on --

when the Examiner indicated this was hi.s 

last wi.tnes~. I was oreoared, based on the 

documentatfon orevtously that had ~one into 

evidence, to nut on Jud,:!e Carri.llo i.n 

connecttn with the Exhibits 69, 75, 76, 82, 

151, 152, 151, 154. I am not, however, will-

i.n~ to sub1ect my client to testimony from 

11 fad lf' wt tness as Mr. Coul in~ has turned 

out to bf' and E•179-1 throu,:!h 29. 

Now, that is the reason for my reQuest 

for the addtttonal time, It renutres a com-

~lf'te reevaluation of my case and the ~osture 
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and form~ not to b~ fr~nk ~nd ooen to th~s 

Court ~nd t~fs r~cord, that I am ~ur~rised 

-po1nt woulCI bP a fat lur~ to dt s~har~e my 

duty a5 a member of th~ Bar of this state 

for tw~nty-five years, if that means anythin~. 

THE MASTER: As an attorney of twenty-

five years of Px-periPncP, you have certainly 

been !'ur,rispd in the trlal matters b~for~. 

MR. MITCH:~L: Oh, no ~u~stion, it i~ 

uuite a r~occurrin~ ex-pPr~enc~. Jud~e Meyprs. 

THE MASTER: And all thh is, is evf_-

rPbuttin~ the su~~estion that you made, 

that therE' were only these five c~ecks 

that went to Judge Carrillo's benefit. 

Now, I wtll also be candid with you, 

I doubt that I will ~ivP too much ~ei~ht 

to thesP checks tn the F~rm and Ranch Stor~. 

Obviously, he is a 'Partner, but that is a 

stel) rE-moved. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's rt~ht, Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: I don't know how much 

wei~ht I will ~ive to this. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Had I thou~ht, of course -

as the Court well knows, my or~dicate Gues-

ti.ons out to Mr. Coulin~ werE' for the ~uroose 

of settin~ a oattern fnr my case and for 

outtin~ of Jud~e Carrillo on the stand. I 

don't -- therE' are other business entittes 

that I have no assurance th~y won't call 

somebody now and show that he has ~ot, let's 

say, 11ll of the checks~n'fn~ from Benavi.des 

Im'l)lement ~tnd Hardwar~ to thP bank that hP 

owns ten sharPs of stock in. Lord knows, 

that c11n be carried to an imoossible E'nd. 

Now, i.f I were i.n 8 normal trial, Your 

Eonor, I would a~ree with the Court, the 

Court has tried many civil c11ses and I have 

tried many, I know what occurs in a normal 

surorise, I am not -- I thou~ht tn thts 

hi~hly soecialized tyne of nroc~dure, akin 

to an ·indictment and akin to 8 criminal 

case where I was entitled to rely on thP 

formal notirf' ~iven to mE', or at lf'ast thP 

amended formal notice, and it ts to that, 

that I have attached my case. That is, 

that the tyoe of orocpdurP, 1 know, Your 

Honor, that a case f1owR and ~ets i.ntn 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COUAT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXA·S 78401 



2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

~ur~rtse elemPnts. 

Now, I say that the nroblem ts furthPr 

ag~ravated herP becausP I think the ~eculiar 

ty~e of orocePdtn~s doesn't r~~uire ch~t I 

defend evervthtn~ relatin~ to thP dtsoualt-

fication. 

THE MASTER: But when you ooen somethin~ 

uo, Counsel has a rtght to -- I would a~ree 

with you comobtely, Counsel could not h8ve 

~otten tn E-179-1 through 29 but for the 

nuesttons you asked this morning of Mr. 

Coulin~. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor, I --

THE MASTER: Now, and it ts only mildly, 

tf the earlier Exhibit ts the ones that were 

not admitted, that t~ 174 throu~h 178, that 

would be very directly refutive or it would 

be a very direct rebuttal of that suggestion 

that there were only these five checks totAl• 

ing seventy-four hundred dollars. 

MR. MITCHELL: But thts is the oroblem 

that we are faced with, Judge Meyers. We 

have the swnrn testi.mony and a witness 

s 0onsored by the Examiner that a ~artnershlo 

ca~e into existence between Ramtro Carrillo, 
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tn May of 1971, and thi~ ~entlemen, Mr. 

Coulin~, of which my client wa~ a sflent 

~artner and nursuant to thAt oartnershin 

these check~ mere natd tn my osrt -- to my 

client. 

If there is nothin~ in the record that 

the-- that there was anyth'J~ tfed in to 

that oartnershin arran~(ment in May of 1971, 

of Farm and Ranch, which is another ~artner-

sht~, between my client and stfll someone 

else. 

THE MASTER: Well, Mr. Mitchell --

MR. MITCHELL: That to me is why I 

I had to -- I am ~ut in the oosture now of 

facin~ an entirely different char~e. 

THE MASTER: Well, as I say, I will 

~tve you untU Wednesday of ne~t week and I 

would like to know whether that is acce~ted. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, i.t is accented, 

JudJ~;e, orovfdPd I can -- I don't want Mr. 

Coulin~ -- I have to ~et Mr. Coultn~ back, 

of course, Wednesday, and we will start 

and I am not bein~ facetious, I will take 
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ft, I will t~ke~ery bit of time I c8n ~et. 

MR. ODAM: If that i.s thP case then, 

Y~ur H~nor, to take threP d8y~ to rebut the 

evidence which is the checks that were 

is~upd to Farm and Ranch, I don't know how 

you rPbut check~ that werP is~ued, but if 

that fq the ~tate of the record, to take 

timP to do that with tho~e sprfps of checks, 

~e will withdraw those checks and ~roceed 

to out Jud~e C8rrtllo on the Atand, and 

"'hen Jud~e Carri.llo jl;oes on the stand, we 

w~ll orocepd from there. 

ThPy sre -- 179-t throu~h ?9 are wlth• 

drawn from evidence. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Odam. 

Your Honor, &A I undPrstand ft, Counsel is 

MR. ODAM: And the Eyaminers do rest 

thPir case and wP will orocPed from here. 

MR. MITCHELL: And do we understand 

all of thP te~timony J?;fven in connection 

with 179-1 throu~h 179·29 ts stricken from 

the rPcord? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: And did hE' rPst? 
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THE MASTER: YPR, ~ir. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Your H~nor. if I mi~ht 

THE MASTER: WPll, he hasn't ~utte 

resterl. WP :qt1ll ht~ve th'~.s tnventory thct 

you knnw ~tbout. 

MR. MITCfiELL: Yes. I h~~tve no ob.1 ecti on 

to the inventory, I kno~ w~at Mr. Flusche 

THE MASTER: What i.e- thE' E'.lfhtbf.t number? 

MR. FLUSCHE: ThE' Exhibit i~ E-40, 

Would you takP this and "ut it in for E-40 

and takE" the old one out, 

(Whereu"on E-40 wa8 8ubst1tuted for 

Exhibit E-40 formerly in ~e record.) 
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THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, do you want 

to break to get organized or are you ready? 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we would call 

as our first witness, Mr. Maurice Pipkin. 

I might state for the record, he is not 

here, and in connection with the First 

Amended Notice of Formal P~ocedure, the 

reason for that, and maybe we can dispense 

with him, if the Court recalls, I put on 

Judge Carrillo on the preliminary matters 

and if I can have an agreement Mr. Pipkin 

~otill take the stand and can authenticate the 

original notice, then that can be offered for 

this record, then that will conclude that 

witness. 

THE MASTER: Let me see, the second 

notice of informal proceeding 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: -- was there a reply? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And the formal proceeding? 

MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: And then the amended notice? 

MR. MITCHELL: Right, and the replies 

to those, Judge Meyers. 
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THE MASTER: That, I take it, can be 

stipulated, can it not, Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, I would think they are 

a part of the record in the proceeding. 

MR. MITCHELL: I knew the Court did not 

admit them and we will offer them for the 

full record. 

HR. ODAM: We will stipulate they are 

what they purport to be and they are so 

stipulated. 

HR. MITCHELL: I would like to break 

for a short period and --

THE MASTER: All right. I would like 

to break for twenty minutes and hear 

testimony from 11:40 until 1:00 -- well, 

11:45 until 1:00. 

MR. ODAM: Kay I make a statement, if 

the first witness is Judge Carrillo, it is 

our intention to go into the notice of formal 

proceeding. I take it from Mr. Mitchell's 

statement, he is going to offer him only for 

a limited purpose; however, I think it opens 

it up and subjects htm to full cross-examination. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I am not going to ask 

this witness about each and every ground of 

the specifications. I am going to go to the 

F-irst Amended Notice of Formal Procedure 

without waiving my objection to it, but I 

think I have to go to it. 

May I have at this point some indication 

of my tender of Judge Carrillo, Your Honor, 

on Roman I, III and VIII; would that subject 

him to cross on those, and if so, I will 

not ask him about those? 

THE lfASTER: I don't know, I would like 

some assistance. 

MR. MITCHELL: As the formal notice was 

adopted by the Examiner, that at the outset 

he said he would like to make a statement 

concerning the specifications he had a 

witness testify to and I would like to have 

this same thing as to whichever I might ask 

Judge Carrillo about. 

THE MASTER: That is a matter which I 

contemplated when it was suggested that 

Judge Carrillo might take the witness stand. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Are you suggesting that he 
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can take the stand on a hearing of the merits 

for the limited purpose of addressing certaim 

counts in the Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceeding? 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 

THE MASTER: And still be asserting hia 

Fifth Amendment privilege lo the rest? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: You can probably do that, 

but you will have to be awful careful. 

MR. MITCkbLL: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: Your idea is that it opens 

up everything, Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: My intent was not to put 

it on the Fifth Amendment basis. 

THE MASTER: They say once you put him 

on the stand to deny any of the counts, that 

opens him up on all of the counts. 

You were not limited in the cross-

examination of any of these witnesses because 

they spoke on one count only. 

MR. MITCHELL: Maybe they can come up 

with case law, but I had understood that the 

right to incriminate and the Miranda, I 
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would say that l 

THE MASTER: Well, I am making it easy. 

At this stage, I will limit the cross to the 

counts you open up, but JOU must understand, 

if the law is contrary to your ·position, 1 

will permit cross-examination on all counts. 

1 must say I don't knaw the law in this area. 

MR. MITCHELL: Other than the Miranda, 

where it says you can stop it on the 

proceeding at any time. 

THE MAS1~a: Well, that is for a 

criminal action and I can tell you I don't 

know in this instance. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have just a minute, 

Judge? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. Let the recor~ 

show that I am consulting with Judge Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: We are in recess. You 

don't have to consult with him in court. 

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken,) 

MR. MITCHELL: · May I call to the witness 

stand, Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 
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THE MASTER: Yes, have a seat, please, 

.Judge Carrillo. 

MR. ODAM: May I ask a question? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: When we talked about coming 

back on Monday or not, do I take it this 

would be your last witnees and you ~est after 

his testimony? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: I assume that:. b. conditioned 

on his cross-examination? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, as is the present 

plan, and in view of the stipulatio~ and 

kindness of counsel to stipulate, J~dge 

Carrillo would be the final witness,. subject 

only to the matters 48 to the Court's 

disposition on technical rules of evidence. 

MR. ODAM: As to the prospects of coming 

back on Monday, if the Master determines 

cross-examination would be limited to the 

matters related on direct, my quest:ion is, 

I can understand it would be limited, but if 

I were to ask -- that means I would not be 

permitted to ask queationa on the- Q.t;her 

matters? 
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THE MASTER: Bo, I am not aaying t;~C 

you would be limited on that at all, but you 

can't make a bill. 

Now, Mr. Mitchell-, as we were here 

informally before the reporter came in; I 

told you and the Examiner that ~t this stage 

I would permit Judge Carri~lo to take the 
: . ~ -

stand and to testify with respect to 

individual counts contained in the First 

Amended Notice of Formal Proceedins. These 

are designatea by a Roman ffumeral I th.toush 

XII. I also stated that I did not k'll,o~ 

whether the law was that he wouid the~,~~Y· 
. '.:.<>'': 

open himself up for cross-examittatton"\l!r:tth 
:'.:··~ 

-

: . . . ~ .. _..::.-: ·, . . 

respect to all of thoae paragrAph• o;r-,::w.hather 

cross-examination would be limited -Cdt,;;th,s 
_' .. "/'~ -~ 

paragraphs on which he testified. 

MR. MITCHELL: That ie correct, · 

'lHE MASTER.: You indicated ·to me. you 

contend cross-examination is !baited t.CJ ·the 
' •' 

paragraphs about which he testifiea and you 

intend to be very careful to so ;t'tmit.hla 

testimony. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, air . 

1'RE MASTER: The Examiner c().~tends that 
f ~ . ' • .-. ' 
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irrespective of that, by taking the stand 

and testifying to any paragraph, he opens 

himself to all, is that your understanding? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: Judge Carrillo, is that 

your understanding? 

.JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: You are a judge and a lawye~, 

Judge Carrillo. 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, sir. 
' 

THE MASTE~: And you know by taking the 

witness stand, anything you say may be used 

against you in a criminal proceeding? 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And you know you waive yout 

privilege against testifying, certainly as 

to the matters of which you testify, do you 

understand that? 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Well, Your Honor --

well, would you restate that? 

THE MASTER: Do you understand that if 

you take the stand and testify with respect 

to matters in any of the paragraphs, that 

the Examiner has the right to cross-examine 

you fully on those paragraphs? 
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JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And you voluntarily take 

the stand with that knowledge? 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, sir. I thought 

Your Honor was trying to say that if I was 

forced to testify on one 

THE MASTER: No, sir. 

You also understand you may very well, 

by taking the stand, by testifying to one or 

two or three of these paragraphs, open up 

yourself to cross-examination on all twelve? 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, if that is the 

law, I will do that. 

THE MASTER: And you are willing to 

take the stand with that understanding? 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Very well. With that 

understanding, will you raise your hand and 

be sworn. 
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JUDGE 0. P. CARRILLO, 

2 called as a witness, having been first duly sworn 

3 upon his oath to tell the truth, the whole truth and 

4 nothing but the truth, then testified as follows, 

5 to-wit: 

6 

7 E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------
8 

9 BY MR. MITCHELL: 

10 

11 Q 

12 A 

13 Q 

14 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 

20 A 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

State your name foL the record. 

0. P. Carrillo. 

You previously testified in this case in 

connection with preliminary matters, have you not? 

Yes, sir. 

And you are the same Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, sir. 

I have handed you a copy of the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I make this 

statement for the record. While I intend to 

ask the witness, Judge Carrillo, about the 

matters raised in the First Amended Notice, 

I do so without the desire and with the 
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specific intent to the contrary of waiving 

any and all matters heretofore raieed and 

brought to the attention of the Court as to 

the validity of the First Notice, and without 

regerding to waiving especially those pleas 

in abatement or any objections made of record. 

THE MASTER: Well, I ~hink the 

exceptions have been ruled upon. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, insofar as 

permissible by law. I do so out of an 

abundance of ~~utlon and I want to --

THE MASTER: I don't believe by calling 

him as a witness you waive anything and I 

don't deem it that way. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I am going to ask you certain 

questions, Judge Carrillo, and I am going to 

refer to specific paragraphs of the First Amended 

Notice. 

Yes, sir. 

I am going to ask you questions about Roman 

Paragraph I. 

Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And this is directed to I 

entirely? 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE· GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 71.01 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 Q 

10 

11 

12 A 

13 Q 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 A 

?'7'70 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. In 

view of the fact the witness, being a judge 

und nttorney, and, of course, I recognize 

the rules on leading my own witness and I, 

of course, recognize the rule by which I 

might request the Court to give me some 

latitude in that regard. 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Without attempting to restate 

the record, you recall the testimony as regards 

Roman Numeral I? 

Yes, sir. 

Let me ;;.sk you, first of all, did you at any 

time enter into any agreement, conspiracy or 

understanding with your brother, Ramiro Carrillo, 

to wrongfully obtain from the public, that is, 

Duval County funds, three hundred dollars a month 

up until May, 1975? 

No, sir. 

Did you enter into an agreement with anybody, 

including Ramiro Carrillo, at any time, to 

unla"t-lfully secure from Duval County any money as 

relates to the money of public funds to the Cash 

Store? 

No, sir. 
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Now, there is in evidence as in 1972, some adding 

machine tapes; do you recall that testimony? 

Yes, sir. 

And ther<! i.s in evidence testimony from the witness, 

Cleofua Gonzalez, Mrs. Yzaguirre and Mr. Rudolfo 

Couling, as to the operation of the welfare progran 

in Duval County. 

Yes, sir. 

I direct your attention to that testimony. I 

will ask you, first, as a predicate question, 

when were you firs· of all elected to your present 

term? 

I was elected at the general election of November, 

1974. 

And you took the oath of office when? 

Approximately the 2nd of January, 1975. 

You were in the courtroom when the Examiner's 

attorney entered into the stipulation as regards 

the Cash Store disbursements of January through 

March, 1975? 

Yes. 

And prior to January of this year? 

Yes, sir. 

And going back to the sixties, when did you first 

become a public official in Duval County? 
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A I was elected county attorney at the general 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

election, I guess in 1960 and took office in 1961. 

All right. 

Or '59 and took office in 1 60, but I think it was 

'60. I am not sure, whatever the record reflects. 

You were a public official beginning from 1961 

and coming on up to date, is that a fair statement~ 

Yes, sir. 

Beginning in 1961, was there a well established 

custom and procedure in Duval County as regards 

the welfare program"! 

Yes, sir. 

Can you describe that for us? I am interested 

in the state program from which monies were 

appropriated by the Commissioners Court; do you 

understand? 

Yes, sir. 

Tell the Court what the program was. 

The program was for persons who needed help, who 

would approach a county official who had been 

designated as such to grant assistance to needy 

people and there were several persons who were 

so authorized to issue orders. 

From whom would that authorization come? 

It would be from the Commissioners Court. 
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It is testified that Ramiro Carrillo is your 

brother? 

Yes, sir. 

And he is a commissioner in Precinct 2? 

Precinct 3. 

Precinct 3, I am sorry. 

When was he elected? 

He was elected -- when he took office, he was 

named by the Commissioners Court after the death 

of Atlee Parr, who was then commissioner in 1967. 

From 1961 to 1967, ~amiro Carrillo was not a 

commissioner? 

No, sir. 

Did you participate in the welfare program from 

1961 to '67? 

Yes, sir. 

Tell us in what capacity. 

I would authorize giving of welfare orders to 

needy people. 

From whom did you receive your authority? 

The Commissioners Court. 

And state whether or not other persons were 

likewise given that authority? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, from 1961 to 1967, who, besides the county 
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attorney was able to do so? 

There was Mrs. Elvira DeLeon. 
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Elvira DeLeon is the official welfare officer of 

the county? 

Correct. 

And is to this day? 

Yes. 

And she has, from 1960 to date, had the authority 

to pass on the qualifications of persons to 

receive welfare? 

Yes. 

Would the membars of the Commissioners Court have 

that authority as well? 

Yes, sir. 

Also other persons designated by the Commissioners 

Court? 

Yes, sir. 

I will ask you what other persons besides the 

county attorney, which was yourself, would have 

been designated as persons authori•ed by the 

Commissioners Court to receive welfare? 

As far as I remember, every elected county 

official was authorized, within a certain budget, 

which they could give. 

That was the next question. When the authori&atio~s 
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would be ruled on by the Commissioners Court, 

would that be unlimited or would it be restricted? 

There was a budget for each commissioners precinct. 

Ana would that be in tu:n1 broken down to the 

persons in that precinct? 

Yes. 

What was your budget in 1961 to 1967? 

I don't remember the exact amountmr the precincts. 

Strike that. 

I want your individual -- if you don't 

recall, I want to ~~ve from 1967 to date. 

Did you h£ve an authorization after 1967 

strike that. 

Let's go back from 1961 to 1 67. I am 

interested in your own budget. 

Well, let me put it this way. In Precinct 3, 

Atlee Parr and myself were the elected officials 

who issued out the welfare orders, but we 

discovered there were folks coming to me and 

getting an order for groceries and then they 

would go to Atlee Parr and get an order for 

groceries, also and we were being duplicated, 

so what happened, we sort of set up an office 

and Mr. Atlee Parr would refer p~raons to me 

with a little note or call me on the phone or 
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something and say it is all right to go ahead 

and give Mr. Garcia, for example, a thirCy 

dollar grocery order or a one hundred dollar 

order for & funeral or hospitalization or whatever 

it was, and I okayed it and would give out the 

official order. 
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Q And wa~ that for th~ ourno~~ of or~cludtn~ a 

~tackin~ uo? 

Q r~ that ri~~t? 

A That ts corr~ct. 

Q Now, Judgfl Cl!lrri.llo, was thf'r~ It timf' there you 

werfl not authori~~d to as~ist in the welfare oro• 

p.ram, you inrltvidually? 

A No, ~i.r. 

Q All ri_~ht. Now, I'll l!tRk you, at the ti.me thl!tt 

you ar~ testffytn~ thts 61 to 67, werfl 11ll of 

th~se ord~rs tn ~ellbound book~ and kflot? 

Q Do you recall Mr. Coultn~'s testimonyabout the 

white cooifls, th~ oink cooy? 

A YPs, 1'!i.r. 

Q And the -- green, I beliflve, cooy, do you reeall 

those books? 

A I r~member the books. 

Q All rt~ht, let m~ ask you w~ -- taktn~ a oerson 

other than Elvira DeLeon, what would that oerson 

execute -- how would that oerson evidence the 

fact that he had aoolied to buy a rf'ctoient or 

orosoeetlve r~ctoient, how would he ~o about that? 

A You mtoan the i.ndi.vidual that came lookin~ for helo? 
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() YP~, •dr. 

A Th~r~ wa~ 8 soecfal form th8t was fflle~ out 

and ~rnt ~o whoever had ~fven the servt~e, that 

~nut~ be arocPrfr~. medical nr what have you. 

HowevPr, som~times folks would mr~t you 

down on the str~et, it f.s a small community whrr~ 

a lot of ~eool~ know a lot of Olrsons, and they 

would com~ in and meet you down nn the street 

and say, "Look, I am ~oin~ tn n~~d some ~roceries 

~nd I am gotng to need some medicine or ~ome-

thf n~", and I wa!J nu ... tr bur;y wf. th my .1 ob to beg fn 

wfth and ~o what I did was thPre was a Mr. George 

Zertuche, Junior, who was working wfth the tax 

offfcP, th~ school df.atriet ta:~r offf.cP., and Mr. 

Rudolfo Coultn~. and what they were dof.ng, they 

were, in fact, handl•ng the welfarP business for 

me. 

Then, I would either sign r;ome of thPse 

orders tn blank when they eame ln with some of 

these books or they would eome ln and they would 

say we gave orders to eertafn tndlvtduals and 

would you sf.gn thP. authorization for them. 

Q I belf.P.ve Mr. Coulf.ng so test'fff.ed, Judge Carrillo. 

A Yes. 

Q Now, would you ever ·- of course, you trusted 
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Mr. Coulin2 11nd Mr. ZEOrtuch~. Junior? 

Q To takE' the ordPr~ dirf'ctly, am I correct? 

A Y~~. !'d.r. 

Q All ri~ht, I will ask you --

MR. ODAM: Pardon me, may I ask a 

~uestion on voir dirE' for t~e ouroose of 

decid~n~ wh~ther or not to "ose an ob.1ection 

to thi~ testtmony? 

THE MASTER: Certainly. 

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

BY MR, ODAM: 

Q MaybE' I noted it f'arlter, what "eriod of time 

arE' we talkin2 about that you were Authorized to 

MR. MITCHELL: My ~uestions are only 

reachin2 61 to 67 11t thfs tfmf', Counsel, 

11nd I do intf'nd to come forward. 

MR. ODAM: Well, Your Honor, I would 

object then, the "roceedin2s that we have 

beforE' us to be~in with, the time that hf' 

assumed dutie-s as a Distrf.et .lld~e of the 
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'-'-9th untf.l the tt""• of May of 1975, t"tE' 

timE' thAt tht~ witness t~ testtfyin~ to is 

not in rruf'"tton and f.s, tht>ref,rt>, irrelevant 

went to and the au~stfons a" to how he 

handled the busint>RS wtth Geor~e Zertuche, 

Junior, which is not in auer- t'f.on and how 

he handl Pd {t w t th Rudo l fo Cmltns;!: h not f n 

nuf'stton, is irrelevant to ~ara~raph 1. 

THE MASTER~ I assume, Mr. Mitchell, 

that thts ts •• you satd initially the way 

welfare was hendlE"d in Duval County and I 

take tt you are just ~ofn~ to brtn~ tt on 

uo and attf'mot to Rhow that tt was sort of 

the same way. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's rt~ht, 

THE MASTER: In 71, 7'- and 71. 

MR. MITCHELL: Ri~ht on uo to date, 

that's r·f.~ht, Jud~e Meyers. 

THE MASTER: I think thf' ~k~round 

ts ltdmt!ll'ltble. 

MR. MITCHELL: I wf.ll try to be brief. 
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Q Jud~e Carrillo, tn li~ht of the objection and 

t~e Court's ~n~tructfon, let me move from the 

neriod of 1967 t~ December 31st, 1974, are you 

foltow~n~ me? 

A Yes. 

Q Were there any si~f_ficltnt chan~es tn the methods 

A 

used fn the county for the welfare nro~ram that 

you recall either as t~ ~rocertes, medical, dru~s. 

et cetera? 

The orocedure in the county was the same with 

the exceotton of the fact that I became inactive 

insofar a~ that oro~ram was concerned, not because 

the commiesioners court withdrew the ltuthorfty 

from me to tssUP orders, but because I didn't h~tve 

the time to devote to the oro~ram. 

Q Now, you first became elected District Jud~e of 

the 229th when? 

A 1971. 

Q And you served --

A I took office fn 71. 

Q All rt~tht. 

A I ~as eleete~ In 1970. 
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Q Sn th~ r~cord ~~ complete, you took office tn 

1971'1 

A 71. 

Q Aurl thl'lt tf'rm exnirf'd D~cPmber ,1st, 1974? 

A ThAt'~ corrPet. 

Q And then you took nffiee a~afn January of 1975? 

A YPs, ~dr • 

Q Do your acttvfties 

MR. MITCffiELL: Strike that. 

Q Wh~n you becl'lmf' District Jud~e the first time, 

whAt was your schedute? What was your district 

1.11d t-•hllt was your schedule? 

A TherP .re thrf'e counties involved 11nd it was a 

heavy schedule all the way throu,h and I just 

dfnn't have time at all for the welfare pro~ram. 

Q Y~u have heard the testimony as re,ards the 

wpekly !!chedule that you had prescribed for ,:ur-

Relf? 

A YeR, sir, I had a week for each county and an 

open week which sent me to whatever county 

wherever I was needed. 

Q All ri,ht. Now. let me ~et Rpectfic on Roman 

number t, the bud,et Mrs. Y~a,uirre talkPd about 

nf thr~e hundred dollars. What d~es she have 

reference to, if you know? 
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A I don ·~t --

Q ExeU!'lP me, JudttP C11rri.llo, I'm telkfn~ now from 

thP tfmp of 1970 to Deeember of 1974. 

A Yf's, !lfr, 

Q Wh11t the thrPe hundred doll11rs • mnth. 

A Well, I really was never limited t~ three hundrPd 

dollars • month or to anythin~ ltke thet exee~t 

that durin~ thosP years that ~he was talkin~ 

about, I was not really ~a~ef~atin~ at all in 

the welfllrP pro~ram. 

TherP were oce11slonal t{mes when folks would 

annroach mP for orders or for somethtn~ and I 

wout~ refPr thPm to either Rend them over to th~ 

eounty commf.ssionPr or send them over to Cleofus' 

Gon~ale~ who was handlin~ the nro~ram at the 

ti.me. 

I, myself, wasn't handltn~ any of the 

nro~ram at th11t time at all. 

Q .A t1 ri~ht. 

A And I beeeme Dhtri.et JudJrt" and I 1-.1 nothi.np; to 

do whatsoevPr wi.th it. 

Q Your maritel statuR has always been that of a 

A YPs, sir. 
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A Yec:., sir. 

Q And you llve thPrP in thP clty, when you arf' in 

tl,p BPnllvic:lPR arPII, wi.th your dac:l and mother? 

A That'~ correct. 

Q And ~l,pn you'rf' out on thP circuit in Starr County 

and in J{r Hog~ County? 

A Jim Ho?.g ~nd Starr. 

Q Ynu Pat o~t. I ~unnosf', do you not? 

A Well, the noon hour. I travf'l back and forth 

becau~e my folkR Are Pldf'rly and I commute daily. 

Q You have traded with the Cash Store, I ~u~~ose, 

for many years. 

A For many years. 

Q What other stores ~e you traded with? 

A Ramiro's DrivPin Grocery in Benavides. There 

Arf' about aooro~imately three drtve-~ns in 

Hebbronvf1lf' that I trade wi.th. I cH,n't --one 

fs HillcrP~t and one ts Gonzalez and Hillcrest 

owns twn ~.ocAtf ons, and I tr11derl ll t both, 

There f.R 11 stnre i.n FrPf'r, the V11lue M11rt 

and tn Rio Gr~tndP City, olus I thfnk it is 

Gonzale~ Market, I am not sure. 

Q Do you have your own oersnnal account at these 

Atores, f.ncludfn~ the Cash Storf'? 

A Yes, Air, 
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Q 

you ~ay that un t~tc~ ~ month? 

A I oay that un whenPver I -- ~henev~r it becomP~ 

I will come 

in and ~ay ~~ much on An account or nAy off the 

w~ole thin~ or if I buy fifteen dollars worth of 

~roceriP5, I ~•Y fifteen dollar~ ~orth. Some• 

time~ I char~e an~ sometimes I don't. 

Q Jud~e Carrillo, for the forty-ei~ht months of 

1970 to 74, have you ri~ned off or stolen from 

the county f~urt~en ~housAnd d~11ars worth of 

~roceries? 

A No, sir, I have not. 

Q If so, I want tn kn~w wh~re you ~ut them. Your 

te~timony is you have not? 

A I lwE' not. 

Q And the accusations or allegations contained in 

S~ecification 1 I!! !'!imnly not true, ic: that 

your tPstimony? 

A It is not true. 

Q All rt~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: I move, {f I ml~ht be 

~Prmltted, Your H~nor, to Rom~n II and ask 

only one OUPSt{on in that connect{on. 

Q I believe the record hAs been introduced here as 
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A Y~"'· str. 

A Y ~tt , " f r . 

A v .... str. 

0 I will attk you on .. ftU~etton on that: Wh•n Mr. 

Garland Smith ftt~d ~h~ ftrst motfon to dtsftuattfy 

you, what wa111 your action at that tt••' 

th~ btonch, 1 tmm•dht•ly rf'Cf'"'"'•" th• cas• en~ I 

i 
w•nt nv•r to Edfnbur~ end tetk .. d to th• admtnhtr•-! 

ttv• 1udttto. 

0 Who te that? 

0 That would hav• bto•n tn th• ftr111t ~art of 

1971? 

Q A 11 rtttht. 
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th~ ~roceedfn~~. ~nt off the bench, recessed the 

heartn~. ~ot off the bench, ~ot in my car and 

drove to Edinbur~ ~nd talked to Jud~e Alamia and 

had b~en filed, I believe. for the reason that 

I owned stnck tn the bank and whatever reasons 

there w~re and h~ su~~ested that t ~o to my 

office and reauest, in wrttin~. that some other 

1ud~e hear the motion, whether or not I was ~ualf• 

I went back to my office and did exactly 

thltt. 

Q And now, Jud~e Carrillo, the evidence•s, I 

believe, Mr. Garland Smith has filed three motions 

to dfs~ualify, basic motions to dfs~ualtfy, su~~le• 

mental motfon to dls~ualify and still a third 

motion tn dtsaualffy, do you recall that? 

A That is no~sfbly so. 

0 Yes, sir. 

A Because I never went back to the courtroom or 

the hearin~ at all. 

Q My nuP~ttnn nut to you i.s the only one- you t>ver 

s~w was the first one? 

A That's correct. 

Q And the considerable -- thP record soeaks a 

difference fn the alle~ations 7 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q W~ll, let mP ask you this, fn followtn~ the 

oroceodure that you followed, that is in not 

oas~tn~ on your own aualtficatfon and lettin~ 

.Tudi!P Ma~u5 Smith, which Wits aoootnted by your 

adm{nistratfvp jud~e to hear thP mattprs, were 

you followin~ what you considerP~ the taw to be? 

A V., sf.r, I was told I could E>ith~r hear the motion 

myself end oas~ on it myself or let another jud~e 

hPar it. Now, I oreferred to hav~ another jud~e 

hPar it than to hear it myself. 

Q You understand soeeifieatfon 2 char~es you with 

Prror in not dfsoualtfyin~ yourself from oresid-

in~ ov~r the ease as a ~ross error and abuse of 

1udteial discretion, you know that? 

A Y~s, ~ir. 

Q As a matter of fact, you know the Court of 

Civil Aooeals that we ere sitttn~ in the room 

where they oreside, recently handed down a deei-

sion to the effect that the trial court cannot 

oass uoon hfs own ~ualifieatton and should call 

in another 1ud~e to make that determination, am 

I correct? 

A I ~tm not acouainted with that ooinion, sir, but 

that is e~aetly the or«Pdure that I followed. 
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Q A 11 rf.~ht. 

A I mi~ht ~tat~ thRt I had not b~~n on thP bench 

thRt lon~ and I didn't know what else to do excPot 

to ~o to my admf.n~~tratf.ve jud~e and ~et advic~ 

from him. 

Q That i.!'l what I 1'o•as goin~ to ask ynu, thi.s all 

occurred ,.,f.thin th~ first month c f your office? 

A Not wfthin the first month, but it was the first 

time that a motion to dtsnualtfy me had been 

ftlPd befor~ me ~nd I wasn't f~mf.lf.ar with the 

orocedure that I should follow and I wanted to 

talk to Jud~e Alamta and ~et Aome advise on tt. 

Q And the ~rocedure followed wa!'l the one that you 

dt!'lcussed with Jud~e Alamta? 

A That ts exactly correct. 

Q All ri~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, fn connection 

with Roman II we call the Court's attention, 

of course, and the Court is aware to the 

orior tP.stimony of Man~usSmith as well ItS 

to the documentation that has been introduced 

tt:n evtdenee. 

THE MASTER: You said Man~us Smith. 

I didn't recall Mangus Smith testifyin~ in 

thiA ease. 
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MR. MITCHELL: No, no, I'a sorry, thP 

THE KASTER: Yf'S. 

THE WITNESS: By thf' w~ty, hf.s name is 

not Man~~:us, ft h MltftUS. 

THE WITNESS: That f" ri.~~:ht, hh son il'l 

oracttcin~~: law in Austin. 

THE MASTER: We don't want to ~t«hf.m 

confused with Mr. Man~t•s. 

THE MASTER: That's ri~~:ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: With that, thPn, we 

would oltRA from Roman II. 

Q I'll ask you now, Jud~e Carrillo, if you will 

take thE' ffrst amended notf.ee of formal 1troeedure 

thf're in front of you, olease, sir. 

A Yt>s, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am ~~:oin~~: to ask ques-

tions, ff it olease the Caurt, as re~tards 

may I ask him a question, Your Honor, 

off the record. 

THE MASTER: Y u . "-f r • 

(Discussf.on off the rpeord.) 
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MR. MITCHELL: Y~s. now to Roman IV, 

Q You ar~ asked, t~~ formal not~c~ Roman IV states 

that you wrnn~fully aooroortat~d for your benefit 

thP servicP~ nf Fr~tnclsco Rui~. Who is Franctsco 

Rutr." 

A R~ fs a r~sid~nt of Benavide~, my hom~ town, and 

he u~ed to work for t~~ county. Re is now 

emoloyed by ·~hat we normally call the water dis-

trict, 

Q All ri~ht, now, thP soeciftcat'ons oof.nt out 

t~~t from January tl .. • 1st of 71 unttl January 

of 7' Jud~e Carrtlto. that you aooroortated hts 

~ervtces on many occasion~. Can you Aoeak to 

that, olea~e. that formal char~e? 

A Yes, sf.r, I can. I had a r~~ular welder who f.s Mr. 

Cristforo Chaoa who testified here. 

Q That wal'l RuhP.n· ~tnd Rudolfo' s father, he· was on 

your oayroll? 

A Not on the oayroll, but he was taktn~ care of 

all of the wPldin~ that needed to be done at 

my ranch and he rece{ved an amount of four or 

five thousand dollars or more a year for the 

work that he did. 

He was the re~ular welder th~tt I used at 

my olllct>. There was Mr. Fr11neisco Ruh~ who cHd 
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~o to my ranch nn 8 we~k~nd wh~n Mr. Chaoa was 

not avaflablP and it wa~ not on a matter that 

wa~ a bt~ .1ob. It waK a small 1ob that n~eded 

nothin~ over thfrty mtnut~s tn tak~ care of. 

w~ went in th~re and he did th~ job that 

W8~ ~uooo~ed to be done and hP k~ot the weldin~ 

machin~ at ht~ residenc~ on we~k~nds becaue he 

did work for oth~r folks on we~kends and on 

Thursd~y. I think he had every Thursday off from 

th~ county, he did other work. 

I asked him to come over to the ranch, tf 

hP would, and that I would oay htm for tt and 

hP wa11 -· at the ti.me he was makt.n~ som• p;at•s, 

I rem~mber ft as if I was got.n~ ri~ht there today, 

he was maktn~ 11ome gates for an t.ndtvtdual and 

I don't rem~mber hfs name, he was makin~ some 

h~ was weldin~ som• ~ates for an fndtvt.dual. 

He said. "As soon as I get throu~h here, I will 

be over there." 

And I safd well, do you have any tdea how 

long f.t's p;ofnp; to be and he gaid, "No, it. 

shouldn't take vPry ton,:!;", so we ;ust wafted 

for him and hitched the trailer, I mean the 

weldtn~ rf~, which was -- ft Is mounted on a 

lf.ttl.e tr~tfler, onto my own oickuo and took him 
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Q And df.d you !lilY htm? 

A Yf'!ll, !!!fr. 

Q Out of your own funds? 

A Out of my own funds. 

Q And how mur~ timf' was con!llumed in that? 

A Well. it wa~t a matter of 1u~tt usf.n~ hts torch 

It wasn't likf', I 

!llay, thf' major weldin~ jobs wert' donf.' eithf'r by 

~. Crisiforn Chapa or a weldPr ovf'r in Thrf'f' 

Rfvers, I thtnk it is. 

Q Mr. Francisco Ruiz, you &ny usin~ his services 

on reoeated occasions as set out in Roman IV? 

A That'q correct, as I was oaytn~ ~ood money for 

the re~ular welder that I bad. 

Q LPt me ask you, Jud~e Carrillo 

MR. MITCHELL: And I ask thf.s, Your 

H~nor, this ouestion as a bar.k~rnund to 

Roman IV, V and perhaps some of thf' otbPrs, 
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the oolitieal --

THE MASTER: Now, w~ft a minute, you'r~ -

MR. MITCHELL: I h~d better be a littl~ 

more ~oecifie. 

THE llfASTER: You're makfn~ the lines 

fuzzy, Mr. Mitchell. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank yuu, Your Honor. 

let me withdraw that f!U~:o;ti.on and let me 

a~k you: ·Francisco Rui~ nolitically today 

is ali~nPd -- is he ali~ned for you or 

a~ainst you or oo you have any indfeation, 

tryinJZ to m~kf' 

A He is a~ainst thP ooliti.cal association with which 

I am affiliatf'd with. 

Q I~ that also true of Ruben Chao8 and Rudolfo Chaoa? 

Q O:o;car Sanchez? 

A Yes, flir. 

Q And Vicente Chaoa? 

A YeR. sir. 

Q Mr. Ca:d'fn~? 

A Yes, Rir. 

Q And Arnulfo Guerra has 0 reviouRly testified of 

oPtitf.ons to removP, he be'f.nJ!: thP Dfstrict Attorney 

of th~t county,that were filed w{th you in May of 
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thiR year? 

Q T~ll us, t~ th~t when the 9nltt occurred between 

you, the District Jud~e actin~ on Arnul~o 

Gueruis ~etttions and these ~entlem~n ineludtn~ 

FranclRco RuiP1 

A A s~lit between the Carrillo f~mlly and the 

Parr family occurred in May of 74. These ~eti-

tions werp not filed until March of 75 but I 

mt~ht state this, that when that solft ha~oened, 

I, myself, holdinP- the 0osition that I had --

that I held, rather, I was not active, mostly in 

the oolities and I remained friendly with Geor~e 

P.ttrr snd ArchPr Parr as far as thst is c·oncerned. 

Q Didn't ~art of that s~lit occur, I believe, ss 

a matter of fact members of your family were 

called on to testify in federal Grand aury on 

the Geor~P Parr and the Archer Parr casps? 

A fhe day the trial ended and the oart -- they were 

just about the same, one was held in San Antonio 

and one was held over in Corous, the day the 

last trial ended. my father and my brother had 

both testified a~ainst the Parrs. 

When my father returned to home, there was 

a li!tter brou~ht to him resi~nf.np; from the water 
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distr~ct an~ ~11 of the other thre~ m~mbers of 

th~ water -- who werP on the water board had 

alRo testified and ~11 were ur~sented with thP 

it ~nd they had bP.en removed or r~thP.r re~laced. 

The lPtt~r w~~ brou~ht to my f~ther to st~n and 

rest~n and he safd fine, he ~ot off. 

Q That dates uretty well the s~ltt b~tween the 

Parm and the Carrillo~? 

A I think those convictions were auuroximately in 

May of 74, somewhere alonli!: that ti.m~. 

Q Ancl thPn Mr. Arnulfo Guerra, the Di.strfct Attorn~y. 

has testified that he ~rosecuted or filed with 

the distrf.ct clerk' 11 office ~eti tions to removP 

members of the Benavides Indeuendent School Dis-

trfct, I b~lieve? 

A Yes, sir, but that was in March of 1975. 

Q I understand, and that ~reciuttated a further 

rift between what had been the Parr faction and 

the Cerrillos, did it not? 

A Uu until that timP., I, myself ~ersonally, had --

waR l'ltf.ll friendly and Rtf.ll vf.sited with both 

Archer Parr and Gporg~ Parr. 

When thf' oetftton -- when thr District 

Attorney adv~sed mP. tht t he was fil f.n~ these-
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n~tttfons, and the word ~ot nut. the firewnrks 

Q An~ that fs the ~cene dPscribed by the District 

Attnrney very v•vtdty in hfs testimnny ~tven 

her~ that when t~e Parr~ aooeared at t~e courtroom 

we8rfn~ ~uns. am I corrPct? 

THE MASTER: Let's not lpt thp rPcord 

r~flect that the District Attorney testified 

hPre. He tP.st{f{ed before th~ SPnate 

Select Committee and that testtmnny has 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. Y~ur H~nor, but I 

would like for it to be considered as ~art 

of our~~t. 

THE MASTER: Oh, yes, I 1ust dn't want 

anybody to think he actually waA here testt-

fytn~. 

MR. MITCHELL: At t~e House --

MR. FLUSCHE: It hasn't been admitted 

yet, Your Honor, 

THE MASTER: It has not bPen admitted, 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I would ur~e the 

ob1ectton of relevancy as nertatntn~ to the 

ooli.ti.cal euarrel or disoute, however Mr~ 

Mitchell and Jud~e Carrillo wi.sh to 
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THE MASTER: Overrule(f, th11t seE-ms to 

me to ~o to bia~ and motive for testffyin~ 

v••ry C" ll"llrl y. 

Q And I bPlieve thr testimony and the Court ~ill 

havp 11n ~onortunity to review th• testlmony of 

the Dt~trict Attorney that there wa~ no orfor 

convers~tton or con~niracy or ll£reemPnt or collu-

sfon beh•f'f'n vou 1.tnd theDf:c;tri.ct Attorn~>y a~ 

regards thP filing of any of these arttons by 

the Dt:c;trlct Attorney, am I c~rrect, Jud~e 

Carrillo? 

A He told me he waP going to dn ft and I, as the 

1ud£P, had no choice in ~e matter. if he filed 

" nrtftton I had to entertain it. 
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Judge Carrillo, Cleofus Gonzalez, where is he now 

working? 

He is over at the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware. 

How about Rudolfo Couling? 

Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

Ruben Chapa? 

Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

Oscar Sanchez? 

Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

MR. ODAM: I object to that. These 

witnesses have stated where they testified 

to and I don't know how Ruben Chapa works 

for Benavides Implement and Hardware. The 

witness has testified where he worked and 

Mr. Couling has testified where he worked. 

If the testimony is that Mr. Couling --

maybe you should clarify what you mean. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, we will ask the 

witness. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Where are these people working? 

They are located there. They are not working fo~ 

Benavides Implement and Hardware. It is a buildin~ 

only that they are in that building. 

Working out of that building? 
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A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

THE MASTER: So when you say Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, you mean the 

building? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I am referring to the 

location. 

(By Mr. Mi.tchell) Is that BenaYides Implement and 

Hardware business conducting the business out of 

that building? 

Yes, sir. 

Is that the one Cl~~fus Gonzalez now owns? 

Wait a minute, I am not going to say he does own 

it, but he claims he does. 

Is that the one that Rudolfo Couling previously 

owned? 

Yes, sir. 

What connection does the water district have with 

it? 

They have an office in that building. 

And these other gentlemen, the Chapas and the 

others work for the water district in that 

building? 

Yes, and out of a shop directly behind the 

building in another building, but within a fenced 

area. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS '78401 



Q 

2 

3 

A 

5 

6 Q 

7. 

8 

9 

10 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 

16 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 

20 

21 A 

23 

24 Q 

25 A 

2809 

Do you deny o~Roman Numeral IV, the 

appropriation of the services and labor of 

Francisco Ruiz? 

Yes, if I had, I would not have spent the thousands 

of dollars I did spend for welding. 

Let me ask you now on Count 5. Do you recall the 

testimony of Oscar Sanchez and you recall, I am 

sure, the photographs that were introduced in 

evidence and you recall Mr. George Zertuche, Sr.'s 

testimony? 

Yes, sir. 

And Patricio Garza's testimony? 

Yes, sir. 

The occasion, please, sir, Oscar Sanchez came out 

to the ~- strike that. 

What ranch was that? 

The Calvin North Ranch. 

Tell the Court and the record about the Calvin 

N•)rth Ranch. Was it a ranch owned by you at the 

time this reservoir was built? 

No, at the location where the reservoir was built, 

it consisted of one hundred and sixty acres. I 

had bought one hundred and six acres at that time. 

At what time? 

At the time the water reservoir was dug. What 
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they are referring to as a water reservoir was 

a -- I would say it was a water hole of 

approximately ten yards wide, maybe not that, 

but I would say ten yards wide by twenty yards 

long. 

For whose benefit was that being dug? 

Calvin North. 

Why was it being dug on his ranch? 

Because he wanted it. 

Did you have an agreement or contract to buy that 

ranch at that time? 

I had bought part of the ranch and Mr. North and 

I were very friendly and he would come in on the 

weekends from Laredo and spend the weekends on the 

ranch. He would not sell that piece of property, 

because that is the way he spent his time in his 

retired years. 

What year was that get-together at the ranch? 

From the truck that I know I owned, and from 

looking at the license plate, that had to be in 

the summer of 1964. 

All right. 

And it certainly could not have been later than 

'65. 

Was there any work done on your ranch by Oscar 
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A No, that is the only time is when the water bole 

was dug and there was not a single one dug after 

that until recently and it was dug by people 

working with my equipment. 

Q Do you know anything else about the allegations 

in Roman V as to having a conspiracy with Ramiro 

Carrillo? 

A My brother was not a commissioner at that time. 

Atlee Parr was and it is not unusual. 

Q As of this particula..:· point, you are quite sure 

the occasion was '64 to '65? 

A Yes. 

Q And you didn't own the land at that time? 

A Correct. 

Q Now, moving to Roman VI, the backhoe, do you 

recall that? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Tell us what happened about the backhoe? You don' 

deny that the backhoe was out on your piece of 

property when you were building a store, do you? 

A No, sir. 

Q Tell us the date. 

A The date had to be around November, I would say, 

of 1973. 
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Q All right, sir. What was the occasion of the 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

use of the backhoe? 

It is on the occasion I had a turnkey job with a 

contractor. 

What was this gentleman's name, Judge? 

Alejos Ramirez, Jr. 

And who -- what was the turnkey job for? 

It was a turnkey job. He was supposed to lay the 

foundation and set the concrete blocks for the 

building and put the roof on the building. 

What type of building? 

It is a concrete block building. 

Where was it built? 

It was being built at the intersection of 

Highway 16 and the what they normally call the 

Borjas Highway. I don't recall the number. 

Who owned the land on which it was being built? 

It was owned by my sister, but the building was 

mine. 

First of all, was -- strike that. 

Give us the narrative of the involvement of 

the backhoe. 

I went over to see how things were going. They 

were going to pour the concrete a~d they had 

already laid the foundation and whatever it is to 
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do on the wiring and the rods and so forth. They 

were going to pour the concrete. I suggested that 

some high school kids be hired, because they were 

al1-.rays looking for jobs on the weekend and I alway"' 

helped them out, and the contractor, of course, he 

'"as not about -- he had a turnkey job and he 

didn't '"ant to hire them, addit:! . .:>nal people, and I 

told him I would pay them myself. 

When I went over there that one day, I 

discovered what they were doing. They were workin~ 

the kids harder tha .. the old men were working. 

They had them shoveling gravel and concrete into 

the mixer and working them a little too hard. 

How did that affect you? 

I came into town and it didn't set too well with 

me and I told the contractor to take it easy with 

them. Ruben Chapa was with me that day, because 

he had approached me about cosigning a note with 

him. He was trying to buy the Texaco station 

'"here he was working and he wanted someone to go 

to the bank and talk to the banker and that 

happens to me all the time, and see if I could 

arrange a loan for him to see if he could buy this 

filling station. I didn't think ~ filling station 

was the business to go into at the time because 
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it and we came into town and we noticed the backhoa 

was sitting right in front of the old city hall. 

You kne·w who owned the backhoe? 

I knew the backhoe belonged to the water district 

and I knew it was not unusual for it to be loaned 

out or rented out. The gentlemen who worked it 

generally worked the backhoe after hours to make 

extra money and I went over and I looked for the 

men, the two men that worked the backhoe. 

I looked for Olte individual, Guadalupe Ruiz, 

I think it is, and I could not find them, so 

then we went over to see this other young man, 

whose name escapes me, but I do have it in the 

files. 

The other young man, we went to see him, and 

he told me he was busy doing something. He said 

the backhoe was not being used and you can use it, 

but I cannot go with it. I thought it would help 

the kids out if we could take the backhoe out 

there and take the load off them. 

The man said he could not go and he said the 

key is in the ashtray of the pickup sitting over 

there at Guadalupe Ruiz's house, so we went over 

there and got the key and then went by and got a 
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six wheel trailer, which I owned the trailer, and 

hooked it behind the pickup and loaded the backhoe 

behind that trailer and took it over to where the 

store was being constructed and Tomas Elizondo 

was with me and he operated the thing and it worked 

over there three hours and we brought it back in 

and that was it. 

A total amount of three hours? 

Yes. 

And only on that day in question? 

Yes, to have to pour concrete and get it over 

with and that was it. 

Let me ask you, as regards the custom, if any, 

on the use of equipment in Duval County. 

Testimony is replete here on other persons, 

but you are an attorney and judge. 

What is the custom and habit, if there is 

such, as regards the use of the equipment of 

the county? 

There is no rancher or property owner in Duval 

County that at one time or another has not used 

or has had sent by the commissioners or other 

persons, used either the equipment of the county 

that is needed or rented it or samething. It is 

a practice in Duval County and all of the 
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neighboring counties that I know of in that area. 

What was that piece of equipment at the North 

Ranch, would that apply to that piece of equipment, 

too? 

The Grade-all? 

Yes, would it apply to it, too? 

Yes. 

Which Chapa was it, Rudolfo or Ruben Chapa? 

Ruben Chapa. 

You remember him testifying? 

Yes, he is my god so •.. 

Did you cosign his note to get him any money that 

you recall? 

I don't recall whether I coaigned the note or not. 

What was the story about the wife and his problem 

with their baby; did you assist them? 

No, that was Rudolfo. 

You helped --

MR. ODAM: I object on the grounds of 

relevancy as to help he gave on Rudolfo; 

what is the relationship there? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, the young man and 

lady testified previously, and I asked them 

their motive for testifying, and they deniec 

it was critical. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPO~TERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840t 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 Q 

15 

16 

17 A 

18 

19 Q 

20 

21 A 

Q 

23 

24 A 

25 Q 

MR. ODAM: You're going back to 

Paragraph 1? 
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THE MASTER: No, I did think they pretty 

much admitted Judge Carrillo had helped them 

get a doctor for that child while in Laredo. 

MR. MITCHELL: If that is the way the 

Court remembers :f.t, I thou~ht they denied it. 

MR. ODAM: I am sorry. I was out of 

the courtroom at that time and I am sorry, 

I thought you were asking about someone 

other than Ru~~n Chapa. 

Who is this particular article related 

to? 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Well, there had been a closenes~, 

up to when, within the family of the Parra and 

Carrillos? 

We were very close until the Parr and Carrillo 

split, up until that time, they were close as well. 

One young man -- well, strike that. 

When was the split? 

In April or May of 1974. 

You understand, of course, the judges under the 

state system are political animals, do you not? 

Yes. 

And they count on the vote of the public? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

And you keep the vote lined up for that, do you 

not? 

I want every vote that is available. 

And the Chapas have announced and run in 

opposition to you, have they not? 

Yes. 

And would you characterize them as allies or on 

the opposite side of the political fence from you? 

Opposition. 

Now, I am going to ask you, please, sir, in the 

next series of questions 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, these will 

overlap, Roman VII, VIII, IX, X and XI. I 

am going to exclude XI for the time being. 

THE MASTER: So this goes to VII, VIII, 

IX and X? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, and XII. I 

could separate them, I guess, and let's see. 

I can separate them to VIII, IX and X and 

then the other group. 

THE MASTER: Are you omitting VII? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, sir. 

THE MASTER: For the record, say again 

what the next series of questions will relate 
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to. 

MR. MITCHELL: VII, VIII, IX, X, and 

they are, of course, separate checks, and 

then I will go into XII and then end up with 

XI. 

THE MASTER: As I understand it, then, 

the question of his taking the stand and 

opening htm up for cross-examination has now 

become moot if you go into this series of 

questions. 

MR. ODAM: That is right, except for 

Paragraph IV. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, 1 might say 

that the exhibits pertaining to Article VII 

would be E-57 through E-66; Article VIII, 

E-62, 63, 67, 68, 69 and 70, and Article IX 

is E-71 through 76; Article X is E-78 through 

E-83 and Article XI would be E-84 through 

E-90; Article XII is 91 and 92 and the series 

151 through 157, 1 believe it is. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell) Judge Carrillo, lam going to 

hand you, first of all, these checks, and 1 want 

. you to separate the article that deals with the 

five thousand dollar item, which is XI and the 

bulldozer. 
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Let's start there first. 

Yes, sir. 

I will ask you predicate questions. You do know 

R.udolfo CouUng? 

Yea, sir. 

Row long have you known him? 

All my life. 

Give us your relationship f:t:om the first time you 

ran for county attorney, was he for you or agin' 

you? 

I have known him alL my life. Now, there was a 

political what we refer to as a political 

hurricane in 1955. Be was with the Preedom Party, 

or considered to be such. I don't know whether 

he voted as such or not, but he was considered 

as such. Everybody sort of kissed and made up 

then and things came back to a whole United Party 

political group, which was called the Old Party. 

Did that include you and the Parra and Mr. Couling? 

Yes. 

Okay. Go ahead. 

Then we were together until the time of the Parr 

and Carrillo split in 1974 and he was over with 

the Parr faction at that time. 

Mr. Couling has been a Parr man throughout the 
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history of the political action, was he not? 

There was a question as to whether be was in 1955. 

But other than that period in 1955, he has been a 

Parr faction member? 

Yes. 

And when the Carrillos got cross-wise with the 

Parra, which side did be go to? 

The Parr side. 

And that situation continues until this date? 

Yes. 

And he was tax colLdctor for the Duval 

Independent School District, was he not? 

Yes. 

Did you have occasion to take action on a petition 

filed by the proper law enforcement agencies and 

have occasion to have removed members of the 

school board? 

Not all of the school board. I removed four 

members. I think it was four instead of five as 

testified to. 

Was that on a petition by the district attorney 

of Duval County? 

Yes. 

And as a matter of fact, record~ were supposedly 

removed from the school district's office and 
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destroyed? 

Yes. 

And that included also litigation? 

Yes, the D.A. first started an investigation. 

Tell us the date. 

Approximately February, 1975. He started 

subpoenaing records from the various governmental 

agencies and then there was a refusal at first 

to bring in the records to the Grand Jury. That 

was the first time I found out about the 

investigation. Thv~e who wanted them, and those 

who wanted relief, and I ordered that they be 

produced. 

Then Mr. Couling would not let the folks from 

the Corpus Christi Caller in to see them. 

So suit was filed in your court by the Corpus 

Christi Caller Times under the Public Information 

Act demanding an order be issued to comply with 

their demand to deliver those records? 

Yes. 

Was that tried in your court? 

Yes, it was, and I ordered they be permitted to 

go over the records and then the next thing we 

had was a picture of Mr. Couling with a shredder. 

Mr. Couling destroyed and shredded those records? 
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A Yea. I doa't know who took the picture, but it 

..a in tba paper, and the next thin& I kDev, the 

D.A. waa filtna reaoval procaadina• bacauae they 
I were daatroyina the recorda of tbe achool diatrict!. 

Waa that filed with you? 

Yea, I told thea, if you prepare th .. , I vill 

cone idar thea. 

i 

Q Did he prepare them? 

A Be did and I removed the four truataea and n .. ad 

Q 

replac .. enta and they in turn went in and fired 

Hr. Rudolfo Coultnb. 

What vaa that date? 

It vaa around Hay, I would aay, April or Kay of 

1975 • i 
I And ainca that date, Brother Couling haa taatifiedj 

againat you on at leaat two occaaiona that we kn~ 

of? 

'fhree that 1 know of. 

Well, two that he baa done so and the third 

one vaa at the tiaa of tha tapeachaent hearing 

in Austin and he vas ataadina there at the door. 

I 

Q Vall, after 1974 

A Well, after the Parr-Carrtllo aplit-up, when 1 

waa oa a friendly term with th•, the Chap .. and 

Hr. &uta and Kr. Rudolfo Coullng, thoaa folka vera 
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not speaking to ue any mora. 

Actually, the rift began in 1974 than? 

Yea. 

And eulainated in 1975 with the action of your 

court and on the order of the removal of the 

truateea of the school board? 

Yea, air. 

And the pleadings apeak for thamaalvea in that 

action, do they not? 

Yes, sir. 

You did not act oulwide of the record, did you? 

No, air. 

And you did not act beyond the law in any 

instance? 

No, air. 

Do you have a conapiracy or agreement with Arnulfo 

Guerra to destroy the achool board or theae 

gentleman? 

No. 

Did you have in the paat, letting aaide the 

busineaa transaction which I make a aubjact of 

special inquiry, did you have any dealings with 

Mr. Couling throughout the year1? 

Yes, air . 

I want you to take out for me -- it has been 
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confirmed that E-69 is the same as Check E-151, 

is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And E-75 is the same as 152? 

E-75? 

Yes, sir, is the same as E-152? 

Yes, sir. 

And E-76, the same as E-153? 

E-76? 

Yes, the same as 153, one is a Xerox and one is an 

original? 

I don't see an E-76. 

THE MASTER: No, E-76 -- or is that 

R-76 -- well, I am thinking of R-76. 

THE WITNESS: 1 don't see an E-76, 

Mr. Mitchell. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Do you have E-153 there? 

Yes, I have that and -- there it is, a copy of 

it. 

Well, that check that is a copy that is numbered -

here we go; it is clipped over and I so the 

testimony would be that E-76 is the same as E-153? 

Yes, sir. 

Is that correct? 

Yes, .sir. 
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Q And E-82 is the s~e as E-154? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

Now, let's take, first of all -- and E-65 is a 

copy only? 

Yes. 

E-156, which is the original of a check, that is 

for a thousand dollars, do you have that? 

Yes. 

And 155 and 151 and 157, 152, 153 and 154, get 

those in front of you. 

All right, sir. 

Now, setting aside E-65, let's start -- and also 

setting aside 154, let's direct our attention to 

156. 

Yes, sir. 

At any time, did you have any character of 

agreement with Rudolfo Couling and/or Ramiro 

Carrillo, as regards a partnership which was to 

be named Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

No, sir, I heard that for the first time in this 

courtroom. 

Did you have any character of partnership or 

agreement with Rudolfo Couling where he could 

bind you to do anything? 

No, sir. 
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Q Now, the checks, 156 -- was that check, firat of 

A 
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A 
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A 
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A 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 
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A 

all, given to him strike that. 

Given to you by Mr. Couling pursuant to any 

conspiracy, agreement to steal from Duval County 

the sum of one thousand dollars? 

No, sir. 

What does the check recite on its face? 

Counter from 0. P.Carrillo drugstore. 

Did you own a drugstore? 

Yes, 0. P. 's Drug. 

When did you start that? 

I started the drugstore many years ago. It really 

never got off the ground, because I could not 

find a pharmacist to run it for me. I set up the 

fixtures and furniture and so forth for it. 

~~ere those items carried on your tax return? 

Yes. 

Does the fact stated that you sold the counter to 

Mr. Couling, is that stated on that check? 

Yes. 

Tell us about that. 

I don't remember the exact date, but I know I 

sold them to him. 

Was that transaction recorded on your tax return? 

Yes, sir. 
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Was the check you are now holding in your hand 

reported on your tax return? 

Well, it was given to Mr. Kirkland and is shown 

on my income tax. 

Is it your testimony the recital on 156 is correct~ 

Yes. 

And your testimony in this court is that the check 

was not issued to you pursuant to any scheme or 

agreement by you or your brother Ramiro or 

Rudolfo Couling to steal that sum of money from 

Duval County or any other governmental agency, is 

that correct? 

Yes. 

I will ask you, that on Exhibits 151 through 158, 

and ask you if that is the same and correct 

situation as were those, there was no conspiracy 

or agreement or anything of that nature? 

No, sir. 

And what is that check you have there? 

155. 

What is it denominated? 

As a loan. 

Was there a loan from you to Mr. Couling? 

Well, in effect. 

Tell us what that means. 
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I owned a water well rig that was rented by the 

county way before my brother became a county 

commissioner and to this very day has not been 

returned to our possession. 

Was there other equipment that Benavides Implement 

and Hardware would lease out on your account? 

The leasing out of this equipme:1t was done through 

the farm and ranch, I had nothing whatsoever to 

do with it or the running of the farm and ranch. 

I notice in R-91, a detailed breakdown of lease 

rental from Benavious Implement and Hardware. 

Well, like I say, the equipment was rented and was 

rented through the Farm and Ranch Supply, which 

was run by Gonzalez at the time. 1 had nothing 

to do with that. 

Judge Carrillo, look through this check, E-157, 

and tell us what that says. 

Tubing, but I didn't get through on 155. 

Go ahead on 155. 

The water well rig was leased, supposedly through 

the county, or to the county, but they were 

drilling irrigation wells at George Parr's and 

Archer Parr's ranch. We were supposed to be 

getting rental on it and supposedly the rent was 

not coming in and 1 -- nobody seemed to be able 
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to push it through and I flat said I need some 

money and either we will pull this rig in or we 

will get the money. He didn't know how much I 

had coming and he said look, I will give you two 

hundred dollars and we will put it down as a loan 

and when we figure out how much it is, I will 

give you the rest. I said, you give me the money 

and later, when we get to that, I will go on with 

it. 

Was that rig being worked by the county? 

At the beginning, they were drilling wells, when 

they owned right-of-ways. They would go through a 

pasture and leave one side without any windmills 

and the county, that is part of the compensation, 

through the condemnation proceedings, agreed to 

drill water wells and what have you. 
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MR. MITCHELL: E~cuR~ m~, Jud~e Meyers, 

may I a~k the Court what the Court's inten-

ttons were with re~ards tn worktn~. I cannot 

finish and I don't think really wfthtn the 

ne~t ten minutes. Perhau~ if the Court 

wants to work for the balance of the after-

noon, I know '•'e have bt>E'n ~oi.n~ !'linee el~ht 

this morntn~. we mi~ht take a ~hot at com-

olt>tin~ it today. 

THE MASTER: Well, you mean not even 

MR. MITCHELL: I would 1 tke to do that. 

THE MASTER: I ~et all shaky. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if I mi~ht make 

8 sug):!:estion. 

THE MASTER: I don't see any ~oint in 

H. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: BeeausP you are goin~ to 

have two days of cross-examination, I 

AUs~eet. 

MR. ODAM: Well, my suggestion was 

that, of course, it is uo to the Master, 

on his time schedule, but tf we eould take 

break for lunch and Mr. Mitchell were to 
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come back and comol~te his direct examine-

tion, I would oref~r that to ~ive us at 

examination on the entire matter. 

The reason I say that is because we 

arf> not "Preoared, obviously at this time, 

and I would like to go ahead and ore'()are 

the entire cross on I throu~h XII throu~h 

the wet>kend. I am sayin~ take a break for 

lunch and finish the direct this afternoon. 

if we are not going to com"Plete it, I would 

like to have an o0oortunity to --

THE WITNESS: I would Hke to ~o on 

throu~h and ~et y~and I to~t>ther and I have 

~ot some folks that I have ~ot comin~ in 

so we are not ~oing t" com'()lete it. 

MR. MITCHELL: We will just go ahead 

and recess for the weekend then. 

THE MASTER: We can decide, Mr. Odam, 

f. f Mr. Mitchell should say at ~: ~0 this 

af~noon, say that is all I have and then 

Monday mornin~ says I have got a little bit 

more before cross-examinati"n starts and 

I would have to let him have a little bit 
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MR. ODAM: I understand, 

THE MASMK]if thi.nk we ou~ht to break. 

THE WI~~~SS :, ;) ~I, have somE> folks comin~ 

in, Your ~«ffi.t \I;S\,~f{.n~ on the old schedule, 

you know. 

THE MASTER: Well, we will be in recess 

until 8:'0 Monday mornin~ and I won't ex~ect 

a ~hone call and you will not ex~ect one 

from me, in view of thin~s. wE> will juRt be 

(WbE>reuoon the hearin~ was in recess 

at 1:05 o.m. on December 5th until 8:30 a.m. 

on Monday, DE>cember the 8th.) 
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